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STATE JOINT-STOCK COMMERCIAL BANK “ASAKA” (OPEN JOINT STOCK
COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the independent auditors’ responsibilities stated in
the independent auditors’ report set out on pages 2-3, is made with a view to distinguishing the respective
responsibilities of management and those of the independent auditors in relation to the consolidated financial
statements of the State Joint-Stock Commercial Bank “ASAKA™ (Open Joint Stock Company) (the “Bank”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group™).

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that present fairly the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2008, the consolidated results of its operations, cash flows and changes in
equity for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRS”).

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:

e Selecting suitable accounting principles and applying them consistently:
® Making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. Stating whether IFRS have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
consolidated financial statements; and

° Preparing the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate (o presume
that the Group will continue in business for the foreseeable future.

Management is also responsible for:

] Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls, throughout the
Group;

U Maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position
of the Group, and which enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group comply
with IFRS;

o Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation and accounting standards of the
Republic of Uzbekistan;

° Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Group; and

. Detecting and preventing fraud and other irregularities.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 werc authorized for issue by the
Management Board of the Group on 20 April 2009.

On behalf of the Management Board:
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AripovK.T. /Y M Umarova D.M. k\ d

Chairman of the Board Chief accountant

20 April 2009 20 April 2009
Tashkent Tashkent



Deloitte & Touche LLC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders and the Council of the State Joint-Stock Commercial Bank “ASAKA” (Open Joint Stock
Company):

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the State Joint-Stock Commercial Bank
“ASAKA” (Open Joint Stock Company) (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group™), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statements of
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Except as
discussed in the paragraph “Basis for Qualified Opinion” below, we conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Group’s building and premises are stated at revalued amounts, as permitted by IAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment, with the last revaluation performed as at 31 December 2003. As explained in Note 20 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, management has not carried out any further revaluation of these assets in subsequent
vears through 31 December 2008. Revaluation of assets with sufficient regularity is required by IAS 16, Property,
Plant and Equipment. In the absence of information to assess the fair value of these assets, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the carrying amount of the Group’s building and premises does not materially
differ from their fair value.

Member of

Audit.Tax . Consulting . Financial Advisory. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



Opinion

[n our opinion, except for the matter described in the paragraph above, the consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2008, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to Note 34 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements

which indicates that the Group’s liquidity is dependent upon its ongoing access to customer deposits, which the
management have assessed as likely to continue to be available based on historic trends and current observations.

Deloitte L Touche

20 April 2009
Tashkent, Uzbekistan



STATE JOINT-STOCK COMMERCIAL BANK “ASAKA” (OPEN JOINT STOCK

COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

(in Uzbek Soums and in thousands, except for earnings per share which are in Uzbek Soums})

Interest income
Interest expense

NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON INTEREST BEARING
ASSETS

Provision for impairment losses on interest bearing assets
NET INTEREST INCOME

Net gain on foreign exchange operations
Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Dividend received

Other income

NET NON-INTEREST INCOME
OPERATING INCOME

(Provision)/recovery of provision for impairment losses
on other operations

OPERATING EXPENSES

PROFIT BEFORE RESULTS OF ACTIVITIES FROM
ASSOCIATES

Share of results from associates
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Income tax expense

NET PROFIT

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of Parent
Minority interest

EARNINGS PER SHARE (UZS)

On behalf of the Management Board:

P

Aripov K.T. 44 /"

Chairman of the Board

20 April 2009
Tashkent

The notes on pages 9-54 form an integral part of these conseolidated financial statements.
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Notes

6
10, 30

Year ended
31 December
2008

64,484,429
(30,335,433)

Year ended
31 December
2007

43,146,886
(28,373,574)

34,148,996 14,773,312
(18,798,310) (13,415,941)
15,350,686 1,357,371
15,432,736 11,580,175
38,900,889 25,128,573
(5.741,448) (2.148,202)
224,770 521,970
2,909,834 1,894,358
51,726,781 36,976,874
67,077,467 38,334,245
(2,745,085) 208,903
(42,942,504) (28,118,068)
21.389,878 10,425,080
2,431,919 .
23,821,797 10,425,080
(1,893,411) (2,270,326)
21,928,386 8,154,754
1,232,843 .
65,055 :

167 149

Umarova D.M.
Chief accountant

20 April 2009
Tashkent



STATE JOINT-STOCK COMMERCIAL BANK “ASAKA” (OPEN JOINT STOCK

COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008
(in Uzbek Soums and in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash and balances with the Central Bank of the
Republic of Uzbekistan

Due from banks

Loans to customers

Investments available-for-sale

Investments held to maturity

Investments in associates

Loans under reverse repurchase agreements

Property, equipment and intangible assets

Deferred income tax assets

Non-current assets held for sale

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES:
Due to banks
Customer accounts
Debt securities issued
Other borrowed funds
Provision on contingent liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY:
Share capital
Capital reserve
Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
Cumulative translation reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent

Minority interest
Total equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

On behalf of the Management Board:

Aripoy K.T. (Y /o

Chairman of the Board

20 April 2009
Tashkent

The notes on pages 9-54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes

13, 30
14
15, 30
16
17, 30
18, 30
19
20
11
21
2%

23, 30
24, 30

25,30

26

27

31 December
2008

329,180,371
215,404,502
806,434,494
4321310
17,478,061
12,419,919
2,100,559
35,137,413
2,607,246
43,032,930
18,131,586

31 December
2007

424,084,938
135,893,761
630,139,738
2,928,362
11,254,365
11,388,000
503,750
35,297,367
383,894
17,730,435
23,559,189

1,486,248,391

1,293,163,799

308,830,287 254,127,938
946,378,049 832.052,600
11,581 40,837
28,613,982 29,557,803
231,280 544,085
7.715,526 2,258,424
1,291,780,705 1,118,581,687
40,701,866 40,701,866
7,382,187 7,382,187
9,897,808 10,501,650
1,004,521 1,125,085
134,183,406 114,871,324
193,169,788 174,582,112
1,297,898 -
194,467,686 174,582,112

1,486,248,391

1,293,163,799

/

Umarova D.M.
Chief accountant

20 April 2009
Tashkent



STATE JOINT-STOCK COMMERCIAL BANK “ASAKA” (OPEN JOINT STOCK

COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(in Uzbek Soums and in thousands)

31 December 2006

Transfer of realised
revaluation reserve

Effect of changes in tax
rates

Revaluation reserve of
property and equipment

Exchange differencies on
translation of foreign
operations

Net profit

Share capital increase of:

-ordinary shares

31 December 2007

Transfer of realised
revaluation reserve

Exchange differencies on
translation of foreign
operations

Net profit

Dividends paid

31 December 2008

Share Capital reserve Property and Cumulative Retained Total
capital equipment transiation earnings equity
revaluation reserve
reserve
39,596,566 7,382,187 11,223,709 665,373 107,402,753 166,270,588
) L (601,589) 2 523,121 (78.468)
s . (224.474) . = (224.474)
- - 104,004 - (104,004) -
- - - 459,712 - 459,712
- - - - 8,154,754 8,154,754
1,105,300 2 s = {1,105,300) -
40,701,866 7,382,187 10,501,650 1,125,085 114,871,324 174,582,112
- B (603,842) - 525,080 (78.762)
- - - (120,564) - (120,564)
N - = - 21,928 386 21,928,386
- - - - (3,141,384) (3.141,384)
40,701,866 7,382,187 9,897,808 1,004,521 134,183,406 193,169,788

On behalf of the Management Board:

AripovK.T. (/¥ /¢
Chairman of the Board

20 April 2009
Tashkent

'l

Umarova D.M ‘ [;4
Chief accountant 74

20 April 2009
Tashkent

The notes on pages 9-54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STATE JOINT-STOCK COMMERCIAL BANK “ASAKA” (OPEN JOINT STOCK

COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(in Uzbek Soums and in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Provision for impairment losses on interest bearing assets
Provision/(recovery) for impairment losses on other
transactions
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange operations
Gain from sale or disposal of property, equipment and
intangible assets
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Changes in interest accruals, net
Dividend income
Share of results from associates

Cash inflows from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Minimum reserve deposit with the Central Bank of the
Republic of Uzbekistan
Due from banks
Loans to customers
Securities purchased under reverse repurchase agreements
Non-current assets held for resale
Other assets
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Due to banks
Customer accounts
Repayment of debt securites issued, net
Other borrowed funds
Other liabilities

Cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities before taxation
Income tax paid

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds on sale of property, equipment and intangible assets
Purchase of investment available-for-sale
Purchase of investments held to maturity
Purchase of investments in associates

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities

The notes on pages 9-54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended

Year ended

Notes 31 December 31 December
2008 2007
23,821,797 10,425,080
6,30 18,798,310 13,415,941
6 2,745,085 (208,903)
(9,259,388) (3,734,247)
(259,155) (637,542)
20, 10 3,470,517 3,663,540
(631,704) 1,753,408
224,770 521,970
2,431,919 -
41,342,151 25,199,247

(34,012,810)
(21,046,012)
(193,191,031)
(1,499,977)

5,349,932

40,923,703
73,946,204
(29,256)
(648,476)
2,594,491

(54,174,093)
(46,041,666)
(159.776,277)
(503,750)
635,737
(21,181,393)

20,577.982
408,768,100
(233,279)
(152.931)
(1,240,617)

(86.271,081)
(1,326,321)

171,877,060
(2,270,326)

(87,597,402)

169,606,734

(3.897,423)

(7.256,110)

846,015 2,764,975
(986,083) (525,571)
(6,103,117) 37,950,295
(3,533,601) (4,294,743)
(13,674,209) 28.638.846




STATE JOINT-STOCK COMMERCIAL BANK “ASAKA” (OPEN JOINT STOCK
COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(in Uzbek Soums and in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Dividends paid (3.141,384) -

Net cash outflow from financing activities (3.141,384) -

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate on cash

and cash equivalents 2,915,638 335,272
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (101,497,357) 198,580,852
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 13 383,791,368 185,210,516
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 13 282,294,011 383,791,368

Interest paid and received by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to UZS 30,103,712
thousand and UZS 60,858,308 thousand, respectively.

Interest paid and received by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2007 amounted to UZS 28,662,498
thousand and UZS 44,832,117 thousand, respectively.

On behalf of the Management Board:

v
/
A [
1 gt

AripovK.T. (Y [ Umarova D.M. y/
Chairman of the Board Chief accountant J
20 April 2009 20 April 2009
Tashkent Tashkent

The notes on pages 9-54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STATE JOINT-STOCK COMMERCIAL BANK “ASAKA” (OPEN JOI  NT STOCK
COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(in Uzbek Soums and in thousands, unless otherwiseesl)

ORGANISATION

State Joint-Stock Commercial Bank “ASAKA” (Open doiStock Company) (the “Bank”) is a state jointesto
commercial bank incorporated in the Republic of &€kistan on 7 November 1995. The Bank is regulatedhby
Central Bank of the Republic of Uzbekistan and emteld its business under General license #53 @&ddine 2001

on banking operations performance and license #3@&dd29 January 2005 on foreign currency operations
performance untill re-registration.

Based on shareholder’s decision, dated 21 June, 200 Bank changed its form of business ownerstum fState
Joint-Stock Commercial Bank “ASAKA” to State Jofteck Commercial Bank “ASAKA” (Open Joint Stock
Company), and performed re-registration of licereed Charter in accordance with the requirementb®iCentral
Bank of the Republic of Uzbekistan. Therefore, treniBis presently conducting its business underGkeeral
license #53 dated 27 December 2008 on banking tpesgperformance and license #38 dated 27 Deceid on
foreign currency operations performance.

The Bank's primary business consists of commerci@lities, trading with securities, foreign currées; loans and
guarantees origination. The Bank accepts depogita the public, originates loans, transfers paymaeuitisin the

Republic of Uzbekistan and abroad, and provide&ibgrservices for its commercial and retail custmme

The registered address of the Bank’s main offi@&idlukus street, Tashkent, Republic of Uzbekistan.

As at 31 December 2008, the Bank conducts bankpegations from its Head Office located in Tashkgitregional
branches, 99 mini banks and 119 currency exchamie (66 located in Tashkent, and 53 located inamrg)i

throughout the territory of the Republic of Uzbé#is

The number of employees of the Bank at 31 Decem®@8 and 2007 was 2,566 and 2,477, respectively.

The Bank is a parent company of a banking group {(@Geup”), which consists of the following enterpes
consolidated in the financial statements:

The Bank ownership

Country of interest/voting rights, %
Name operation 200¢ 2007 Type of operatior
"Dilorom" LLC Kyrgyzstat 10C 10C Recreation cent
"Asaka Oquv Komplex" Subsidiary Enterpi Uzbekistal 10C 10C Education service
"Hazorasp Textile" LL¢ Uzbekistal 10C 10C Textile
"ASAKA-TRANS-LEASING" LLC Uzbekistal 70 50 Leasing compar

“Dilorom” LLC (“the Company”) — recreation centre ted on the Issyk-Kul coastal lake, was purchasethé
Bank based on the decision of the Cabinet of Ménist#126 dated 29 March 1999. The acquisition amoamprised
the amount equivalent of USD 155,344. The sametheaBank transferred amount equivalent of USD 2608 for
construction and facilities purposes. Both trangyments are performed by the Bank in accordaritetie Letter
of the Central Bank of Uzbekistan #1318/6-1 datelhmuary 2004. The Bank is a sole shareholder oCtmepany.
The Bank did not make investments in the shareaagfithe Company during the year ended 31 Dece2b@s.

“Asaka Oquv Komplex” Subsidiary Enterprise (the “Gumany”) - involved in banking training and educatgarvices
provision. The Company also renders touristic sesjigvhich is in accordance with License # 055-04ai2tl July
2004. The Bank is a sole shareholder of the CompRunying the year ended 31 December 2007, the Bamttem
investments of UZS 14,947 thousand in the shardatagfi the Company, in accordance with the Banlésision
#14/3272 dated 17 September 2007. The Bank did a&éernmvestments in the share capital of the Complamiyng
the year ended 31 December 2008.



“Hazorasp Textile” LLC is a manufacturing enterprisstablished in accordance with the Government Gtren
Instruction #20 dated 6 November 2006 “Selectioingéstors and management companies for textilerprises”,
with the Decree of the President of the Republit/nibekistan #PP-330 dated 21 April 2006 “Procedofdmancial
recovery and enhancement of cotton fibre produdiiortextile enterprises”, with the Minute of the@hcil of the
Bank #15 dated 6 December 2006, with the MinutthefBank’s Management Board #68 dated 20 Novemb@s 2
and the Decision of the shareholders of “Hazorasxtilé& LLC #1 dated 6 December 2006. Earlier, the Bank
accepted property of two companies, JV “Uniho” aleiC “Hazorasp textile plant” announced bankruptaas
repayment of outstanding debt, which these compamieed to the Bank. On the basis of the abovedstigeisions,
this property was afterwards invested in the equiityewly established “Hazorasp Textile” LLC.

The Bank is a sole shareholder of “Hazorasp TextileC. With the purpose to support business activibéshe
Company, the Bank provided the newly establishedrprise with financial support of UZS 224,590 themus, which
was fully repaid by the enterprise in January 2008.

“ASAKA-TRANS-LEASING” LLC is a lease company establishéa accordance with the President's Decree
#PP-396 dated 3 July 2006 “Realization of stateeshaf the Stock company “Toshavtobus”. Share dapita
“ASAKA-TRANS-LEASING” LLC amounted to UZS 4,000,000 tharsl. The shareholders of “ASAKA-TRANS-
LEASING” LLC are the Bank and State Association “TosHsttaranshizmat”.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the followinged@iders owned the issued shares of the Group:

31 December 31 December
2008, % 2007, %
SHAREHOLDERS
The Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Uzbekis 98.3 98.3
JSC "Uzavtosanoe 1.6 1.6
Total 100.00 100.00

These consolidated financial statements were au#ior issue by the Management Board of the Gooup0 April
2009.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Accounting basis

These consolidated financial statements of the Gtayg been prepared in accordance with Interndtiéinancial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the Inteamatl Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and ingeatations
issued by the International Financial Reportingiptetations Committee (“IFRIC”).

These consolidated financial statements are prabdntéhousands of Uzbek Soums (“UZS”), unless otlsaw
indicated. These consolidated financial statemeat® been prepared under the historical cost coimrentodified
for the revaluation of certain properties.

In accordance with IAS 29 “Financial Reporting ilygérinflationary Economies” (“IAS 29”) the economy the

Republic of Uzbekistan was considered to be hyflationary during 2005 and prior years. Startingahuary 2006,
the Uzbek economy is no longer considered to befyfationary and the values of non-monetary asdetbilities

and equity as stated in measuring units as at 8&mkeer 2005 have formed the basis for the amoant®d forward
to 1 January 2006.

The Group maintains its accounting records in acwed with laws of the Republic of Uzbekistan anddyystan.
These consolidated financial statements have besraprd from statutory accounting records and haee ladjusted
to conform with IFRS. These adjustments include aiertreclassifications to reflect the economic sabst of
underlying transactions including reclassificatiafisertain assets and liabilities, income and agpe to appropriate
financial statement captions.

Functional currency
Iltems included in the financial statements of eaality of the Group are measured using the currehay best

reflects the economic substance of the underlyirenis and circumstances relevant to that entity {tbnctional
currency”). The reporting currency of these consa#d financial statements is Uzbek Soum (UZS).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporagefittencial statements of the Bank and entitiesrodiad by the
Bank (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where Bank has the power to govern the financial apdrating
policies of an investee entity so as to obtain fiemieom its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposetiuohg the year are included in the consolidatetiine statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to #ftective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the fahatatements of subsidiaries to bring the acdagnpolicies
used into line with those used by the Group.

All significant intra-group transactions, balandaspme and expenses are eliminated on consolidatio

In translating the financial statements of a fonegybsidiary into the presentation currency fooiporation in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group fadl@ranslation policy in accordance with IAS 21 &Thffects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” (“IAS 21”") andigpens the following procedures:

e Assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-manyeiof the foreign entity are translated at clggiate;

* Income and expense items of the foreign entitytramslated at exchange rates at the dates of ttioss;

« Equity items of the foreign entity are translateéxathange rates at the dates of transactions;

« All resulting exchange differences are classifis@dquity until the disposal of the investment;

« On disposal of the investment in the foreign entigfated exchange differences are recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Groupnisiposition to exercise significant influence, mineither a
subsidiary nor a joint venture. Significant infleenis the power to participate in the financial aperating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control ontj@iontrol over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of assocategcorporated in these consolidated finant&@kments using the
equity method of accounting.

Investments in associates are carried in the cifaget balance sheet at cost as adjusted by pgsisitdn changes
in the Group’s share of the net assets of the @spdess any impairment in the value of individinvestments.
Losses of the associates in excess of the Grouigsest in those associates are not recognizedtidddi losses are
provided for, and a liability is recognized, only the extent that the Group has incurred legal arstuctive
obligation or made payments on behalf of the assecif the associate subsequently reports prdfiis, Group
resumes recognizing its share of those profits aftgr its share of the profits equals the shardos$es not
recognized.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the @teshare of the fair values of the identifiablsets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate at the d#tacquisition is recognized as goodwill. The godldi& included in
the carrying amount of the investment and is assefss impairment as part of the investment. Anfjaikncy of the
cost of acquisition below the Group’s share of thie values of the identifiable assets, liabilitieed contingent
liabilities of the associate at the date of acgoisi(i.e. discount on acquisition) is creditedte consolidated income
statement in the period of acquisition.

Where a Group company transacts with an assodidle @sroup, profits and losses are eliminatedhéoextent of the
Group's interest in the relevant associate. Loss@g pnovide evidence of an impairment of the assetsferred in
which case appropriate provision is made for impaint.

Details of the Group’s investments in associateduding summarized financial information of thes@dates, as at
and for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2e(q@tesented below:
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As at and for the year ended 31 December 2008:

Name of associated Ownership Carrying value Total assets of Total liabilities Net profit
company interest  of investments associated  of associated
in associates  company company

(UZS thousand)UZS thousand)UZS thousand)UZS thousand)

Samarkand Car Factory 26% 8,054,136 74,113,351 41,499,779 2,518,859
OZAVTOSANOATLEAZING LLC 49% 3,725,836 43,453,080 35,908,615 1,196,221
"Ishonch" LLC 30% 639,947 3,300,696 917,432 133,157

During 2008, the Bank acquired additional 20% imevehip share of “ASAKA-TRANS LEASING” LLC and as a
result of the acquisition the Group’s ownershiprgha the equity of “ASAKA-TRANS-LEASING” LLC increased

to 70%. As such, the Group gained control over&k@AKA-TRANS-LEASING” LLC and it was consolidated in

these financial statements.

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2007:

Name of associated Ownership Carrying value Total assets of Total liabilities Net profit
company interest  of investments  associated  of associated
in associates ~ company company

(UZS thousand)(UZS thousand)UZS thousand)UZS thousand)

Samarkand Car Factory 26% 6,448,000 45,645,978 16,892,631 1,848,777
OZAVTOSANOATLEAZING LLC 49% 2,940,000 14,544,929 997,185 385,244
“ASAKA-TRANS-LEASING” LLC 50% 2,000,000 4,305,778 7,452 284,400

Recognition and measurement of financial instrumers

The Group recognizes financial assets and liatslitie its consolidated balance sheet when it becanpesty to the
contractual obligation of the instrument. Regulaywpurchase and sale of the financial assets aiities are

recognized using settlement date accounting. Reaudy purchases of financial instruments that tdisubsequently
measured at fair value between trade date ancreettit date are accounted for in the same way aacfpuired

instruments.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially rgoed at fair value plus, in the case of a finahasset or financial
liability not at fair value through profit or loggansaction costs that are directly attributabladquisition or issue of
the financial asset or financial liability. The aooting policies for subsequent re-measurement egehitems are
disclosed in the respective accounting policieaébelow.

Cash and balances with the Central Bank of the Reflic of Uzbekistan

Cash and balances with the Central Bank of the R&pof Uzbekistan include cash on hand and balarare
correspondent and time deposit accounts with ther@leBank of the Republic of Uzbekistan with onigi maturity
within 90 days.

For the purposes of determining cash flows, casth @ash equivalents include advances to banks imtdes
included in the Organization for Economic Co-opemtnd Development (“OECD”) with original maturitiegthin

90 days. The minimum reserve deposit required eyCtbntral Bank of the Republic of Uzbekistan isinotuded as
a cash equivalent due to restrictions on its aliify.

Due from banks
In the normal course of business, the Group maistatvances and deposits for various periods @& tiith other

banks. Due from banks with a fixed maturity terre aubsequently measured at amortized cost usingftbetive
interest method. Amounts due from banks are can&af any allowance for impairment losses.
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Securities repurchase and reverse repurchase agreents and lending transactions

In the normal course of business, the Group eimiegssale and purchase back agreements (“repod’parchase and
sale back agreements (“reverse repos”) in the Hocmase of its business. Repos and reverse ragostilized by
the Group as an element of its treasury management.

A repo is an agreement to transfer a financialtassanother party in exchange for cash or othesicteration and a
concurrent obligation to reacquire the financiadeds at a future date for an amount equal to tisé ca other

consideration exchanged plus interest. These agrésrage accounted for as financing transactiommrigial assets
sold under repo are retained in the consolidatednfiial statements and consideration received utitkese

agreements is recorded as collateralized depasgived within balances due to banks/customer ad¢soun

The Group enters into REPO and reverse REPO agreemed&s which it receives or transfers collateral in
accordance with normal market practice. Under stehderms for repurchase transactions in the Reépudil
Uzbekistan, the recipient of collateral has théntrigp sell or repledge the collateral, subjectd@tuming equivalent
securities on settlement of the transaction, ohthie counterparty fails to meet its obligations tfee agreement on
the lending transaction.

The equity securities received as a pledge agawstse repurchase agreement were recorded by thg @t cost.
Subsequently, the equity securities are recogrizetthe Group at cost, as there is no active mddtethe securities
pledged.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the cost valuseotrrities received as collateral under reversercbpse
agreements amounted to UZS 1,999,977 thousand andQZ800 thousand, respectively. (Note 19)

Loans to customers

Loans to customers are non-derivative assets wihdfor determinable payments that are not quoteghimactive
market other than those classified in other caiegaf financial assets.

Loans granted by the Group are initially recogniaethir value plus related transaction costs. Whiseefair value of

consideration given does not equal the fair valiithe loan, for example where the loan is issuetbaer than

market rates, the difference between the fair vafueonsideration given and the fair value of tben is recognized
as a loss on initial recognition of the loan anduded in the consolidated income statement acegrtth nature of
these losses. Subsequently, loans are carriedatiaed cost using the effective interest methodarisoto customers
are carried net of any allowance for impairmenséss

Write-off of loans and advances

Loans and advances are written off against the alhoe for impairment losses when deemed uncollectibloans
and advances are written off after management xaxised all possibilities available to collect amts due to the
Group and after the Group has sold all available@val. Subsequent recoveries of amounts preljioustten off
are reflected as an offset to the charge for impet of financial assets in the consolidated incetagement in the
period of recovery.

Allowance for impairment losses
Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group accounts for impairment losses of findragaets when there is objective evidence thatamiial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. Impairrmenses are measured as the difference betweeringpamnounts and
the present value of expected future cash flowsluding amounts recoverable from guarantees anihterl,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effecinterest rate.

Such impairment losses are not reversed, unleassibsequent period the amount of the impairmesst diecreases
and the decrease can be related objectively tovanteoccurring after the impairment was recognizaeth as

recoveries, in which case the previously recognimagairment loss is reversed by adjustment of dowalnce

account.

For financial assets carried at cost, impairmessds are measured as the difference between tlygngaamount of

the financial asset and the present value of estifaiture cash flows, discounted at the currenkataate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment éssare not reversed.

13



Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, a cbdated amount comprising the difference betwesrrdst (net of any
principal payment and amortization) and its curi@ntying value, less any impairment loss previpustognized in
the consolidated income statement, is recognizethéoconsolidated income statement. Reversals phinment

losses in respect of equity instruments classifiecvailable-for-sale are not recognized in thesclithated income
statement. Reversals of impairment losses on dstruments are reversed through the consolidatenria statement
if the increase in fair value of the instrument t@nobjectively related to an event occurring afterimpairment loss
was recognized in the consolidated income statement

The Group accounts for impairment of financial assett recorded at fair value when there is an d¢ibeevidence
of impairment of a financial asset or a group ofaficial assets. The impairment of financial assgsesents a
difference between the carrying value of the aasdtcurrent value of estimated future cash flowetuiting amounts
which can be received on guarantees and secusitpuiited using an initial effective interest ratefioancial assets
recorded at amortized value. If in a subsequeribgpehe impairment amount decreases and such aakican be
objectively associated with an event occurring rafezognition of the impairment then the previoustgognized
impairment loss is reversed with an adjustmenhefgdrovision account.

For the financial instruments recorded at costitiygairment represents the difference between thging value of
the financial asset and current value of the eséichéuture cash flows discounted using the curreatket interest
rate for a similar financial instrument. Such imp&nt losses are not reversed.

The impairment is calculated based on the analysissets subject to risks and reflects the amauffitient, in the
opinion of the management, to cover relevant losBes provisions are created as a result of an ioha@ evaluation
of assets subject to risks regarding financial tasseing material individually and on the basisaofindividual or
joint evaluation of financial assets not being maténdividually.

The change in the impairment is included into psofising the provision account. The assets recordeithe

consolidated balance sheet are reduced by the dnoduthe impairment. The factors the Group evaluates
determining the presence of objective evidencecofioence of an impairment loss include informationliquidity

of the debtor or issuer, their solvency, busingsksrand financial risks, levels and tendenciesdefault on

obligations on similar financial assets, nationad docal economic tendencies and conditions, aidvédue of the
security and guarantees. These and other factoigidadlly or in the aggregate represent, to a gedéent, an
objective evidence of recognition of the impairmiess on the financial asset or group of finanasdets.

It should be noted that the evaluation of lossetudes a subjective factor. The management of tloenGbelieves
that the amount of recorded impairment is suffickencover losses incurred on assets subjectke asthe reporting
date, although it is not improbable that in cera@riods the Group can incur losses greater cordpareecorded
impairment.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part dinancial asset or part of a group of similar finel assets) is
derecognized where:

» the rights to receive cash flows from the asseeledpired;

< the Group has transferred its rights to receivén ¢dsvs from the asset, or retained the right toeiee cash
flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligatigray them in full without material delay to arthparty
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and

< the Group either (a) has transferred substantallijthe risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) meither
transferred nor retained substantially all the gigkd rewards of the asset, but has transferretlotaf the
asset.

A financial asset is derecognized when it has ltemrsferred and the transfer qualifies for dere@tamn A transfer
requires that the Group either: (a) transfers th@ractual rights to receive the asset’'s cash flawgb) retains the
right to the asset’s cash flows but assumes a acmtl obligation to pay those cash flows to adtiparty. After a
transfer, the Group reassesses the extent to witiels retained the risks and rewards of ownershthe transferred
asset. If substantially all the risks and rewandse been retained, the asset remains on the bakreet. |If
substantially all of the risks and rewards havenlteansferred, the asset is derecognized. If anbatly all the risks
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and rewards have been neither retained nor trarsfethe Group assesses whether or not is hasedtabntrol of
the asset. If it has not retained control, thetissderecognized. Where the Group has retaioetia of the asset, it
continues to recognize the asset to the extens abntinuing involvement.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the aation is discharged, cancelled, or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replacey &nother from the same lender on substantialffeidifit terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substanyiathodified, such an exchange or modification istied as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the reautjon of a new liability, and the difference inethespective carrying
amounts is recognized in the consolidated incorteistent.

Finance leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer subdtaitiathe risks and rewards incident to ownersbian asset. Title
may or may not eventually be transferred. Whethkraae is a finance lease or an operating leasendepon the
substance of the transaction rather than the fdrtimeocontract. The lease classified as financeeléas

« The lease transfers ownership of the asset to sisedeby the end of the lease term;

e The lessee has the option to purchase the ass@rigeavhich is expected to be sufficiently lowkan the fair
value at the date the option becomes exercisable that, at the inception of the lease, it is reabty certain
that the option will be exercised,;

* The lease term is for the major part of the econdifieiof the asset even if title is not transferred

* At the inception of the lease the present valuthefminimum lease payments amounts to at leastastizly
all of the fair value of the leased asset; and

* The leased assets are of a specialized nature lsaicbrily the lessee can use them without major fications
being made.

The Group as a lessor presents finance leases s &l initially measures them in the amount edoahet
investment in the lease. Subsequently the recagnidf finance income is based on a pattern refigcé constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investtme the finance lease.

Before commencement date property, plant and eqrippurchased for future transfer to finance léasecognized
as property and equipment purchased to transfimdoce lease into the other assets line in theadaated financial
statements.

Investments held to maturity

Investments held to maturity are debt securitieth wieterminable or fixed payments. The Group hasptistive
intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Suakcsrities are carried at amortized cost, less dioyvance for
impairment, if any. Amortized discounts are recagdi in interest income over the period to matuaging the
effective interest method.

Investments available-for-sale

Investments available-for-sale represent debt anpdteinvestments that are intended to be heldaiorindefinite

period of time. Investments available-for-sale imigally recorded at fair value and subsequentlgasured at fair
value, with such re-measurement recognized dir@etBquity, except for impairment losses, foreigileange gains
or losses and interest income accrued using thectefé interest method, which are recognized direict the

consolidated income statement. When sold, the Igam/previously recorded in equity is recycled tigto the
consolidated income statement. The Group uses quoéeklet prices to determine the fair value for @mup’s

investments available-for-sale, except for non-retakle equity securities. If the market for investits is not active,
the Group establishes fair value by using valuat&mhniques.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm’'gflermarket transactions between knowledgeableingilbarties,
reference to the current fair value of anotherrimaent that is substantially the same, discountesth low analysis
and option pricing models. If there is a valuatt@ehnique commonly used by market participants rtoepthe

instrument and that technique has been demonst@igavide reliable estimates of prices obtairmeddtual market
transactions, the Group uses that technique.

Dividends received on investments available-foesale included in dividend income in the consoédaincome
statement.
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Non-marketable debt and equity securities are dtatteamortized cost and cost, respectively, legmimrment losses,
if any, unless fair value can be reliably measured.

When there is objective evidence that such seearliave been impaired, the cumulative loss preljioesognized
in equity is removed from equity and recognizedhia consolidated income statement for the periods&Hinancial
assets are recognized at net of reserve for impairm

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset is classified as held for #aleis highly probable that the asset’'s carryiagount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather thamugin continuing use and the asset (or disposalpjris available
for immediate sale in its present condition. Mamaget must be committed to the sale, which shouldxpected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale withire year from the date of classification of an easéeld for sale.

Non-current assets held for sale are measuree &wrer of its carrying amount and fair value lessts to sell. If the
fair value less costs to sell of an asset helg#ébe is lower than its carrying amount, an impairtiess is recognized
as a provision for impairment losses on other dpera in the consolidated income statement. Anysegbent

increase in an asset’s fair value less costs tasselcognized to the extent of the cumulativeamment loss that was
previously recognized in relation to that specifgset.

Property, equipment and intangible assets

Property, equipment and intangible assets, acqaiited 1 January 2006 are carried at historical less accumulated
depreciation and any recognized impairment losanyf. Property, equipment and intangible assetpjiead before 1
January 2006 are carried at historical cost restéde inflation less accumulated depreciation ang eecognized
impairment loss, if any. Depreciation on assetseurmnstruction and those not placed in servicententes from
the date the assets are ready for their intended us

Depreciation is charged on the carrying value opprty and equipment and is designed to write-sdets over their
useful economic lives. It is calculated on a straige basis at the following annual prescribegsa

Buildings 5%
Furniture and equipment 10-20%
Vehicles 20%
Intangible assets 20%

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the ghoft¢he life of the related leased asset or tresdeterm.
Expenses related to repairs and renewals are charged incurred and included in operating expensésse they
qualify for capitalization.

The carrying amounts of property, equipment andngitle assets are reviewed at each balance shieetodassess
whether they are recorded in excess of their reede amounts, and where carrying values excesdestimated
recoverable amount, assets are written down to teedverable amount.

Impairment is recognized in the respective period & included in operating expenses. After thegadion of an
impairment loss the depreciation charge for prgpextiuipment is adjusted in future periods to atecthe assets’
revised carrying value, less its residual valuaiiy), on a systematic basis over its remainingulte.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the ¢amendeferred tax expense.

The current tax expense is based on taxable poofthe year. Taxable profit differs from net prafé reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excluees iof income or expense that are taxable or dietin other
years and it further excludes items that are ntsable or deductible. The Group’s current tax expen calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted duringtiegqueriod.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payableecowerable on differences between the carrying atsoof assets
and liabilities in the consolidated financial stagnts and the corresponding tax bases used inotngutation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the hedasheet liability method. Deferred tax liabiktiare generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differenced deferred tax assets are recognised to the eki@hit is probable
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that taxable profits will be available against whiteductible temporary differences can be utilistch assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporaryeliénce arises from the initial recognition of athesets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the tax prafi the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is readest each balance sheet date and reduced totthd that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profiif be available to allow all or part of the astebe recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates thatexipected to apply in the period when the ligbibt settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or terédin the consolidated income statement, exceginwhrelates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, inehhcase the deferred tax is also dealt with intgqu

Deferred income tax assets and deferred incoméaaikties are offset and reported net on the otidated balance
sheet if:

* The Group has a legally enforceable right to setcoffrent income tax assets against current incare t
liabilities; and

» Deferred income tax assets and deferred incomksatailities relate to income taxes levied by thensataxation
authority on the same taxable entity.

The Republic of Uzbekistan and Kyrgyzstan, where @reup operates, also has various other taxes,hwduie
assessed on the Group’s activities. These taxda@doeled as a component of operating expensesiodhsolidated
income statement.

Due to banks, customer accounts, debt securitiesised and other borrowed funds

Due to banks, customer accounts, debt securitidso#tmer borrowed funds issued are initially recagdi at fair
value. Subsequently, amounts due are stated attiaewbrcost any difference between net proceeds thed
redemption value is recognized in the consolidatedme statement over the period of the borrowingisag the
effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has @présgal or constructive obligation as a resupadt events, and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embogyconomic benefits will be required to settleabéigation and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Financial guarantee contracts issued and letters afredit

Financial guarantee contracts and letters of cisslited by the Group are credit insurance thatigesvior specified
payments to be made to reimburse the holder fasa it incurs because a specified debtor fails akerpayment
when due under the original or modified terms afeht instrument. Such financial guarantee contrastsletters of
credit issued are initially recognized at fair vallbubsequently they are measured at the highg)dahe amount
recognized as a provision and (b) the amount Ilyittecognized less, where appropriate, cumulasir®rtization of
initial premium revenue received over the finangiahrantee contracts or letter of credit issued.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in thexsolidated balance sheet but are disclosed urtiespdssibility of
any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingesset is not recognized in the consolidated balasmet but
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits ishable.

Share capital

Contributions to share capital, made before 1 J3n@806 are recognized at their cost restated rdation.
Contributions to share capital, made after 1 Jan2@06 are recognized at cost.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized intggas a reduction in the period in which they aszlared.
Dividends that are declared after the balance sHett are treated as a subsequent event undendtiteral
Accounting Standard 10 “Events after the BalanceeSbate” (“IAS 10”) and disclosed accordingly.

Retirement and other benefit obligations
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In accordance with the requirements of the Uzbefslation, State Pension Fund provides for theutaton for
current payments by the employer as a percentagearoént total payments to staff. This expense @gd in the
period the related salaries are earned. Upon maing all retirement benefit payments are made byatbove stated
fund. The Group does not have any pension arrangsmnseparate from the State Pension Fund of the biemf
Uzbekistan. In addition, the Group have no postaeetent benefits or other significant compensatedefits
requiring accrual.

Recognition of income and expense
Recognition of interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized on @uakdasis using the effective interest method. &tfiective
interest method is a method of calculating the diment cost of a financial asset or a financial iligband of
allocating the interest income or interest expemgs the relevant period. The effective interest iiatthe rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash paymenteamipts through the expected life of the finahicistrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net sagrgmount of the financial asset or financial ilian

Once a financial asset has been written down gpesitten down) as a result of an impairment lastgrest income
is thereafter recognized using the rate of intewest to discount the future cash flows for theppse of measuring
the impairment loss.

Recognition of fee and commission income and expense

Loan origination fees are deferred, together with thlated direct costs, and recognized as an awgms$tto the
effective interest rate of the loan. Where it ish@ble that a loan commitment will lead to a spedénding

arrangement, the loan commitment fees are defetoggither with the related direct costs, and reizaghas an
adjustment to the effective interest rate of thsulténg loan. Where it is unlikely that a loan coitment will lead to a
specific lending arrangement, the loan commitmeasfare recognized in the consolidated incomenségieover the
remaining period of the loan commitment. Where anleommitment expires without resulting in a lodre loan

commitment fee is recognized in the consolidatednme statement on expiry. Loan servicing fees aregrized as
revenue as the services are provided. Loan syndlicdes are recognized in the consolidated incdateraent when
the syndication has been completed. All other carions are recognized when services are provided.

Foreign currency translation

The individual financial statements of each Groupitgrare presented in the currency of the primacgnomic
environment in which the entity operates. In prémathe financial statements of the individual #es, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in currenciégrothan the entity’s functional currency (foreigarrencies) are
translated at the appropriate spot rates of exehaates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Tetosa in
currencies other than the functional currency axeanted for at the exchange rates prevailing atddie of the
transaction. Profits and losses arising from theseslations are included in net gain on foreigohexge operations.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated findrst@ements, the assets and liabilities of theu@o foreign
operations are expressed in Uzbek Soums using egehiates prevailing at the balance sheet dateniacand
expense items are translated at the average exeheatgs for the period, unless exchange ratesufitexd
significantly during that period, in which case #wechange rates at the dates of the transactiengsad. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are classified as ggand recognized in the Group’s foreign currerranslation reserve.
Such exchange differences are recognized in pofiss in the period in which the foreign openati® disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on #euisition of a foreign operation are treated ssets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translatgdhe closing rate.

Rates of exchange

The exchange rates at year-end used by the Grothe ipreparation of the consolidated financial stetets are as
follows:

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
UZS/1 US Dollar 1,393.00 1,290.00
UZS/1 Euro 2,050.36 1,856.83
UZS/1 UK Pound 2,190.21 2,587.90
UZS/1 Japanese Yen 15.39 11.40
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Offset of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andri net on the consolidated balance sheet wheGstbup has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognizedounts and the Group intends either to settla nat basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simdtarsly. In accounting for a transfer of a finaneiaset that does not
qualify for derecognition, the Group does not dftbe transferred asset and the associated liabilit

Areas of significant management judgment and sourseof estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated findnsiatements requires management to make estinzetes
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assad liabilities at the balance sheet date andeperted amount
of income and expenses during the period endednalylement evaluates its estimates and judgments ongoing

basis. Management bases its estimates and judgraertiistorical experience and on various otheiofachat are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstanéesual results may differ from these estimatesanndifferent

assumptions or conditions. The following estimated judgments are considered important to the ga@trof the

Group'’s financial condition.

Allowance for impairment of loans

The Group regularly reviews its loans and receivalite assess for impairment. The Group’s loan impaitm
provisions are established to recognize incurrgzhirment losses in its portfolio of loans and reables. The Group
considers accounting estimates related to allowdnceimpairment of loans and receivables a key c®uof

estimation uncertainty because (i) they are highugceptible to change from period to period asagsumptions
about future default rates and valuation of pogdriisses relating to impaired loans and receisahle based on
recent performance experience, and (i) any sigaifi difference between the Group’s estimated fossel actual
losses would require the Group to record provisiwhi&h could have a material impact on its conséid financial
statements in future periods.

The Group uses management’s judgment to estimamntbent of any impairment loss in cases where ebhar has
financial difficulties and there are few availallgurces of historical data relating to similar barers. Similarly, the
Group estimates changes in future cash flows baegghst performance, past customer behaviour, wdisler data
indicating an adverse change in the payment stdtherrowers in a group, and national or local esoit conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the grddgnagement uses estimates based on historicaklqeerience for
assets with credit risk characteristics and objeatividence of impairment similar to those in theug of loans. The
Group uses management’s judgment to adjust obderdata for a group of loans to reflect currentwmstances not
reflected in historical data.

The allowances for impairment of financial assetshim consolidated financial statements have be&rrdmed on
the basis of existing economic and political conds. The Group is not in a position to predict wblaanges in
conditions will take place in country and what effsuch changes might have on the adequacy ofllthweamces for
impairment of financial assets in future periods.

Valuation of Financial |nstruments

Financial instruments that are classified as abkatfor-sale are stated at fair value, except for-marketable equity
investments, which are stated at cost, less impaitioses, unless fair value can be reliably meakurhe fair value
of the financial instruments is the estimated amainwhich the instrument could be exchanged beiweiing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation s#le quoted market price is available for anrastent, the fair value
is calculated based on the market price. When tialugparameters are not observable in the marketonot be
derived from observable market prices, the faiugalk derived through analysis of other observamdeket data
appropriate for each product and pricing modelscivhise a mathematical methodology based on accépgettial
theories. Pricing models take into account the remntterms of the securities as well as marketdasduation
parameters, such as interest rates, volatilityhamrge rates and the credit rating of the countgrpaVhere market-
based valuation parameters are not observable, gearemt will make a judgment as to its best estinohtéhat
parameter in order to determine a reasonable tigfleof how the market would be expected to prieeihstrument.
In exercising this judgment, a variety of tools arsed including proxy observable data, historicatad and
extrapolation techniques. The best evidence of value of a financial instrument at initial recogmm is the
transaction price unless the instrument is evidgniog comparison with data from observable marketsny
difference between the transaction price and tHaevaased on a valuation technique is not recogdnimethe
consolidated income statement on initial recogniti@ubsequent gains or losses are only recogtoziéb@ extent that
it arises from a change in a factor that marketigipants would consider in setting a price.
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The Group considers that the accounting estimat¢ecblto valuation of financial instruments wheretgd markets
prices are not available is a key source of estimaincertainty because: (i) it is highly suscdptito change from
period to period because it requires managememiatee assumptions about interest rates, volatéitghange rates,
the credit rating of the counterparty, valuatiofjuatinents and specific feature of the transactant (i) the impact
that recognizing a change in the valuations wowdehon the assets reported on its balance sheselags its

profit/(loss) could be material.

Had management used different assumptions regaticknigiterest rates, volatility, exchange rates,dfedit rating of
the counterparty and valuation adjustments, a tavgemaller change in the valuation of financra@tiuments where
quoted market prices are not available would haseilted that could have had a material impact enGhoup’s

reported net income.

Adoption of new standards

In the current year, the Group has adopted alhefriew and revised Standards and InterpretatiGuedsby the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IABSBnd the International Financial Reporting Intetations
Committee (the “IFRIC”) of the IASB that are relexdo its operations and effective for reportingipés ending on
31 December 2008.

Amendments to IAS 1 “Capital Disclosures” (“IAS £)On 18 August 2005, the IASB issued an amendntensS
1 which requires certain disclosures to be madardigg the entity’s objectives, policies and preessfor managing
capital. Additional information was disclosed iretbonsolidated financial statements for the curagit comparative
reporting periods as required by amended IAS 1.

Amendments to IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Rettign and Measurement”, and IFRS 7, “Financiatiunsents:
Disclosures”, titled “Reclassification of Financia$sets” — On 13 October 2008 IASB issued amendsientAS 39
and IFRS 7 which permit certain reclassificatiohsnon-derivative financial assets (other than ¢hdesignated as at
fair value through profit or loss at initial recagon under the fair value option) out of the fa@lue through profit or
loss category and also allow reclassification péficial assets from the available-for-sale categie loans and
receivables category in rare circumstances. The aments to IFRS 7 introduce additional disclosurpir@ments if
an entity has reclassified financial assets in atance with the amendments to IAS 39. The amendnaeatsffective
as of 1 July 2008. The Group did not adopt amentiediards as at 1 July 2008.

Standards and interpretations issued and not yet ampted

The Group has not applied the following IFRS anénmtetations of the IFRIC that have been issuedalrinot yet
effective:

* |IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” — On 30 November 2@06,IASB issued IFRS 8 which requires segmental
analysis reported by an entity to be based onimdtion used by management. IFRS 8 is effectivgpésiods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The Groupvauating the impact of IFRS 8 on the consolidated
financial statements.

« Amendment to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Staats” — On 6 September 2007, the IASB issued an
amendment to IAS 1 which changes the way in whiafrowner changes in equity are required to be ptede
It also changes the titles of primary financiaksmaents as they will be referred to in IFRS butsdoet require
that these be renamed in an entity’s financialestents. The Group does not expect the adoptiomeof t
amendment to IAS 1 to have an impact on the catest@ld financial statements. The amendment to IAS 1
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 Jag009.

* IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” — The IASB publishERS 3 and related revisions to IAS 27 “Consolidate
and Separate Financial Statements” following themetion in January 2008 of its project on the asitjan
and disposal of subsidiaries. They are effectiveafmrounting periods beginning on or after 1 Julp206ut
may be adopted together for accounting periodsnipéggy on or after 1 January 2007. The Group is otlye
evaluating its impacts on the consolidated findrst@tements.

« The IASB published revisions to IAS 32 ‘Financiaktfiuments: Presentation’ and consequential re\gsion
other standards in February 2008 to improve thewtting for and disclosure of puttable financiatimments.
The revisions are effective for accounting periodgibning on or after 1 January 2009 but togethey thay
be adopted earlier. They are not expected to havaterial affect on the Group.
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« In May 2008, the IASB issued amendments to IFRBirkt-time Adoption of International Financial Repiog
Standards’ and IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separatari€ial Statements’ that change the investor'suatiay
for the cost of an investment in a subsidiary, tjgircontrolled entity or associate. It does noteaffthe
consolidated financial statements but may prospegtiaffect the Group’s accounting and presentatibn
receipts of dividends from such entities.

e The IFRIC issued interpretation IFRIC 15 ‘Agreemefotsthe Construction of Real Estate’ in July 2008is
interpretation clarifies the accounting for constien profits. It is applicable for accounting pets beginning
on or after 1 January 2009 and is not expectedve h material effect on the Group.

e The IFRIC issued interpretation IFRIC 17 ‘Distrilrts of Non-Cash Assets to Owners’ and the IASB made
consequential amendments to IFRS 5 'Non-Currenetaskleld for Sale and Discontinued Operations' in
December 2008. The interpretation requires distidinstto be presented at fair value with any surpludeficit
to be recognised in income. The amendment to IFR&xtBnds the definition of disposal groups and
discontinued operations to disposals by way ofridistion. The interpretation is effective for acoting
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, to bepded at the same time as IFRS 3 (revised 2008)jsanot
expected to have a material effect on the Group.

e The IFRIC issued interpretation IFRIC 18 ‘Transferfs Assets from Customers’ in January 2009. The
interpretation addresses the accounting by sugpiiet receive assets from customers, requiringsanement
at fair value. The interpretation is effective fasats from customers received on or after 1 Jub@ 2hd is not
expected to have a material effect on the Group.

« |AS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Maasnent” and IFRIC 9 “Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives” On 5 of March 2009, the IASB issuedaamendment to IAS 39 effective for annual periooidireg
on or after 30 June 2009. These amendments clagfyon reclassification of a financial asset outhef“at fair
value through profit or loss” category all embeddedivatives have to be assessed and, if necessgrarately
accounted for in financial statements. The Group agiply this amendment for the annual period begmion
1 January 2009 and does not expect that it wilehasignificant impact on the Group consolidatedrcial
statements.

¢ IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” On 5March 2009 the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 7
named “Improving Disclosures about Financial Instemts”. The amendments introduce a three-level fuleya
for fair value measurement disclosures and reqeritéies to provide additional disclosures abot tblative
reliability of fair value measurements. In additiothe amendments clarify and enhance the existing
requirements for the disclosure of liquidity riskhe Group will apply this amendment for the annusiiqu
beginning on 1 January 2009. The Group is curreetlgluating its impacts on the consolidated findncia
statements.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain classifications have been made to the diolased financial statements as at 31 December 20@7for the
year ended to conform to the presentation as &ie@ember 2008 and for the year ended as currenpyesentation
provides better view of the financial position b&tGroup.

o Amount Balance sheet line as  Balance sheet line as
Nature of reclassification UZS’000 per previous report per current report

Reclassification of funds provided by
Export Import Bank, Korea from customer 43,124,845 Customer Accounts Due to Banks
accounts to due to banks
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NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income comprises

Interest income on financial assets recorded at @mdrtost:

Interest income on financial assets that haen
written down as a result of an impairmesslo
Interest income on unimpaired assets

Total interest income

Interest income on financial assets recorded at &adrtost
Interest on loans to customers
Interest on loans and advances to banks
Interest on investments held to maturity
Total interest income on financial assets record:t
amortized cost

Interest expense comprise
Interest on financial liabilities recorded at anwet cost
Total interest expens

Interest expense on liabilities recorded at amedtizos!
comprise:
Interest on due to banks
Interest on customer accounts
Interest on debt securities issued
Interest on other borrowed funds
Total interest expense on financial liabilities retzt al
amortized cost

Total interest expens

Net interest income before provision fol
impairment losses on interest bearing assets

ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND OTHER PROVISIONS

The movements in allowances for impairment losseistanest bearing assets were as follows:

31 December 200

Additional provision recognized
Write-offs of assets
Recoveries of assets previously written-off

31 December 200

Additional provision recognized
Write-offs of assets
Recoveries of assets previously written-off

31 December 200
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Year endec Year endec
31 Decembel 31 Decembel
2008 2007
25,033,820 40,507,06
39,450,609 2,639,82
64,484,429 43,146,88
56,695,900 38,807,80
6,434,751 2,639,69
1,353,778 1,699,38
64,484,429 43,146,88
30,335,433 28,373,574
30,335,433 28,373,574
14,030,686 14,764,97
15,882,026 12,369,07
2,272 791,84
420,449 447,66
30,335,433 28,373,57
30,335,433 28,373,57
34,148,996 14,773,31
Loans Total
to customers
40,439,22. 40,439,223
13,209,837 13,415,941
(234,941) (23419
1,871,279 1,879
55,285,39: 55,491,502
19,004,414 18,798,310
(13,059,243) (13,0588)
7,066,892 7,066,892
68,297,46. 68,297,46.




The movements in allowances for impairment lossestloer transactions were as follows:

Investments Other assets Non-current  Provision for Total
available-for- assets held-for-  contingent
sale sale liabilities
31 December 200 1,174,553 86,379 4,696,621 5,957,55
Provision/(recovery) 223,699 (138,632) (838,055) 544,085 (208,903)
Write-off of assets - (2,685) - - (2,685)
Recoveries of asse
previously written-off - 167,260 3,363 - 170,62
31 December 200 1,398,25; 112,32 3,861,92! 544,08! 5,916,588
Provision/(recovery) - 53,292 3,004,598 (31380 2,745,085
Write-off of assets (110,541) (2,B0B) - (2,411,144)
31 December 20C 1,398,25: 55,07: 4,565,92. 231,28 6,250,52!
NET GAIN ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE OPERATIONS
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
Translation differences, net 14,643,166 10,953,98
Dealing, net 789,570 626,187
Total net gain on foreign exchange operatiot 15,432,73 11,580,17
FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
Fee and commission incom
Foreign exchange operations 18,866,172 10,170,52
Settlements 13,349,850 9,481,95
Letter of credit operations 5,855,969 5,093,06
Guaranties 574,036 213,58
Factoring operations 107,082 74,46
Cash operations 576 2,89
Other 147,204 92,09
Total fee and commission incorr 38,900,88 25,128,57
Fee and commission expens
Cash collection services 2,836,642 1,530,20
Settlements 2,607,973 485,56
Foreign exchange operations 19,509 12,82
Other 277,324 119,61
Total fee and commission expen 5,741,44 2,148,20
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10.

OTHER INCOME

Other income:
Fines and penalties

Income from sale or disposition of property, equipitranc

intangible assets
Income from rent of property
Other non-interest income

Total other income

Other expense:

Loss on disposal of property, equipment and intdagibsets

Total other expensi

Net other income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2008 2007

330,326 330,326
260,272 637,542
29,641 42,747
2,290,712 884,577

2,910,95 1,895,19

(1,117) (834)

(1,11 (83

2,909,83 1,894,35

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, as a result cfotioiation, other non-interest income included pthen-interest
income of subsidiaries of UZS 2,079,509 thousarldaS 475,865 thousand, respectively.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Staff costs

Taxes, other than income tax
Social costs

Depreciation and amortization
Security expenses

Charity and sponsorship expenses
Maintenance

Stationery

Membership fee
Communications

Business trip expenses
Advertising expenses

Rent expenses

Professional services
Representative expenses
Newspapers, magazines, stamps
Court expenses

Fines and penalties

Other expenses

Total operating expense
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
200¢ 2007
14,378,067 8,935,862
7,453,833 4,901,053
5,085,634 3,069,990
3,470,517 3,663,540
1,792,495 1,186,030
1,729,652 1,296,829
1,638,209 1,311,852
1,504,613 620,954
1,370,000 376,428
1,134,073 990,432
557,283 535,247
426,992 187,767
424,241 314,682
329,124 273,445
107,084 54,398
60,915 39,855
40,283 29,375
42,577 12,016
1,396,912 318,313
42,942,50 28,118,06




11.

INCOME TAXES

The Group provides for taxes based on the tax axsomaintained and prepared in accordance withtadble
regulations of the Republic of Uzbekistan and whigdy differ from International Financial Reportinta8dards.

The Group is subject to certain permanent tax iiffees due to non-tax deductibility of certain e)g@snand a tax
free regime for certain income.

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of terapo differences between the carrying amounts oftassed
liabilities for financial reporting purposes andetamounts used for tax purposes. Temporary diffeeas of 31
December 2008 and 2007 relate mostly to differenhots of income and expense recognition as wet ascorded
values of certain assets.

Temporary differences as at 31 December 2008 and @@@prise:

31 Decembel 31 Decembel
2008 2007

Deductable temporary differences
Provisions for impairment losses on interest beaaggts 5,028,874 3,122,97
Provision for impairment losses

non-current assets held for sale 366,170 366,17
Provision for impairment losses

other assets 4,477 4,47
Total deductable temporary difference 5,399,52 3,493,62
Taxable temporary differences
Property, equipment and intangible assets 1,619,017 1,905,39
Accrued interest on loans 846,068 1,122,72
Other liabilities 327,190 81,61
Total taxable temporary difference: 2,792,27 3,109,72
Net deferred tax asse 2,607,24 383,89

Relationships between tax expenses and accountfi for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 24@7
explained as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2008 2007

Profit before income ta 23,821,79 10,425,08
Tax at the statutory tax rate (15% for 2008 and 2@66€,17% for 2007) 3,573,270 1,772,26
Non deductible expense (employee compensations,| sax;.
representation expenses, other) 6,449,876 1,488,82
Non deductible infrastructure tax 249,247 85,50
Change in tax rate - 144,84
Non-taxable income (8,378,982) (1,221,111)
Income tax expens 1,893,41 2,270,32
Current income tax 4,195,525 1,726,00
Change in deferred income tax assets (2,302,114) 544,32
Income tax expens 1,893,41 2,270,32
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13.

Deferred income tax asse

Beginning of the yea

Current year tax asset/(liability)

Deferred tax on the depreciation related to thelvatimn reserve
Change in deferred income tax assets

End of the yeal

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit:
Net profit for the year attributable to ordinary s#taolders

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Earnings per share -basic and diluted (UZ<

200¢ 2007
383,894 1,231,15
2,302,114 (544,320)
(78,762) (78,468)
- (224,374
2,607,24 383,89
Year ended Year ended
31 Decembel 31 Decembel
2008 2007
21,928,386 8,154,75
131,606 54,75
16 14

On 29 October 2007, the Shareholders made a dedisidecrease the nominal value of the shares @& 100
thousand to UZS 50 thousand. The decrease in timnabvalue of the shares has occurred in ordeotoply with
the legislation of the Republic of Uzbekistan. Asesult of that decision, the number of outstandshgres has

doubled.

CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE REPU BLIC OF UZBEKISTAN

Cash
Balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of

Total cash and cash balances with the Central Bandf the
Republic of Uzbekistan

31 Decembe! 31 Decembe!
2008 2007
64,660,111 26,816,05
264,520,260 397,268,388
329,180,371 424,084,93

In accordance with the banking legislation of thepBblic of Uzbekistan, the Group should have nderest
minimum reserve deposits at the Central Bank ofRepublic of Uzbekistan, which are defined as aiporof the
Group’s liabilities and have a restriction on thege. As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, non-intengstnum
reserve deposits at the Central Bank of the ReputflUzbekistan comprised UZS 123,100,847 thousadl UZS

89,088,037 thousand, respectively.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group didhagt any significant long-term OECD balances with th
maturity greater than 90 days. Therefore, the OECEnNas with the maturity less than 90 days were ifledsas
cash equivalents for the purposes of the conselitistatement of cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes ofotgotidated statement of cash flows comprise theviing:

Cash and balances with the Central Bank ¢
Republic of Uzbekistan
Due from banks in OECD countries

Less minimum reserve deposit at the Central Bar
the Republic of Uzbekistan

Total cash and cash equivalen
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31 Decembe! 31 Decembe!
2008 2007
329,180,371 424,084,93

76,214,487 48,794,46
405,394,858 472,879,40

(123,100,847)

(89,088,037)

282,294,01

383,791,36
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DUE FROM BANKS

31 December 31 December

200¢ 2007
Time deposits with other banks 161,951,191 129,569,27
Correspondent accounts with other banks 3433311 6,332,589
Due from other banks 110,000 198,00
215,404,502 136,099,86
Less allowance for impairment los - (206430
Total due from banks 215,404,50 135,893,76

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, due from bankd4$ 37,924,137 thousand (18%) and UZS 40,240,841
thousand (30%), respectively, were due to one bahich represents significant concentration.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, included in bakdcae from banks are guarantee deposits, noictedtfor use,
placed by the Group for its operations in the amadndZS 215,404,502 thousand and UZS 135,893,76astnd,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the amount ofesiteaccrued on due from banks comprised UZS 1582952,
thousand and UZS 180,891 thousand, respectively.

Movements in allowances for impairment losses oa flom banks for the years ended 31 December 2002607
are presented in Note 6.

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

31 Decembel 31 Decembel
2008 2007
Loans to customers 825,191,722 666,458,11
Net investment in finance lease 49,540,233 18,967,01
874,731,955 685,425,13
Less allowance for impairment losses (68,297,461) (55,285,398)
Total loans to customer 806,434,49 630,139,73

Movements in allowances for impairment losses @nsoto customers for the years ended 31 Decemb@& 20
2007 are disclosed in Note 6.

The table below summarizes the amount of loansredcby type of collateral, rather than the fair valfe
the collateral itself:

31 Decembel 31 Decembel

2008 2007
Loans collateralized by cash 269,886,504 212,968,38
Loans collateralized by pledge of real estategirts thereon 164,322,721 148,076,13
Loans collateralized by pledge of corporate guasx 180,168,270 80,413,12
Loans collateralized by combined collateral 98,253,959 114,662,24
Loans collateralized by pledge of equipment and ritorées 86,676,012 44,592,86
Loans collateralized by Government guarantees 55,262,587 43,360,48
Loans collateralized by vehicles 11,438,354 20,029,85
Loans collateralized by pledge of insurance 3,571,675 15,478,71
Loans collateralized by securities 2,691,402 3,472,79
Unsecured loans 2,460,471 2,370,52

874,731,955 685,425,13
Less allowance for impairment losses (68,297,461) (55,285,398)
Total loans to customer 806,434,49 630,139,73
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Analysis by sector:

31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2008 2007
Manufacturing, including: 527,253,518 500,032,889
Vehicle manufacturing 300,263,774 216,761,503
Textile industry 86,411,443 88,702,691
Pharmaceutical industry 54,928,911 71,224,189
Construction materials manufacturing 28,301,510 26,390,200
Other manufacturing 57,347,880 96,954,306
Trade, including food trade 106,987,195 35,853,301
Individuals 86,047,262 53,894,776
Construction 35,527,623 12,822,682
Housing and communal services 29,505,510 26,013,524
Agriculture 28,719,321 13,965,827
Transport and communications 19,592,912 18,361,410
Other 41,098,614 24,480,727
874,731,955 685,425,136
Less allowance for impairment losses (68,297,461) (55,285,398)
Total loans to customer 806,434,49 630,139,73
Loans to individuals comprise the following prodiict
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
Mortgage loar 70,821,470 21,659,698
Consumer loans and loans for construction of apatt 12,550,719 6,026,03
Car loan 1,615,735 25,423,47
Othel 1,059,338 785,57
Total loans to individuals 86,047,26 53,894,77

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, a significant ainotiloans (58% and 44% of total portfolio, redpesy) is

granted to borrowers operating in Tashkent and Hexghregion, which represents a significant geogicg
concentration in one region.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group grdoged to 2 and 3 customers, totalling UZS 61,11bBousand
and UZS 88,135,577 thousand, respectively, whiclviddally exceed 10% of the Group’s equity.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group had lohbZS 37,415,038 thousand and UZS 34,990,99%stud,
respectively, to state owned enterprises. Repaynfeptircipal and interest in respect of these lomnsecured by
guarantees from Ministry of Finance of the Repubfit/zbekistan.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, loans to custonmuded loans of UZS 25,333,362 thousand and UZS
15,994,544 thousand, respectively, whose terms be®e renegotiated.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, loans to customelgded loans under court consideration of UZ$122,742
thousand and UZS 29,567,107 thousand, respectively.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, interest accrfidd& 17,019,154 thousand and UZS 17,284,346 thwjsa
respectively, was included into the loans to custsme

In 2008 and 2007 years the Group entered as arlé&s®ofinance lease agreements for equipment amd n
production buildings for three year period with 18%@ 13% annual interest rates.
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The components of net investment in finance leass 81 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

31 Decembel 31 Decembel
2008 2007
Not later than one year 17,309,110 7,492,095
From one year to five years 51,742,293 21,615,183
Minimum lease payments 69,051,403 29,107,278
Less: unearned finance income (19,511,170) (10,140,259)
Net investment in finance le¢ 49,540,23 18,967,01
Current portion 10,512,409 4,290,619
Long-term portion 39,027,824 14,676,400
Net investment in finance lez 49,540,23 18,967,01
INVESTMENTS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
Equity securities Ownership 31 December Ownership 31 December
interest 200¢ interest 2007

JSB "Microcreditbank" 1.70% 2,500,000 0®%6 1,500,00
0OJSLC "Uzavialeasing" 15.11% 1,279,566 5.11% 1,279,56
JV CJSC "Universal Farm" 7.43% 458,12 7.43% 451,12
CJSC "Asia Invest" Bank 6.60% 354,910 6.60% 354,91
OJSLC "QURILISH-LEASING" 12.51% 335% 12.51% 334,55
0OJSC LC "UzMed-Leasing" 20.00% 300,0 -
SJSIC "Kafolat" 3.87% 169,812 0.92% 86,94
JSC "Uzselhozmashholding" 0.50% 58,0 0.50% 78,05
0JSC JV "Fayz" 6.17% 68,388 6.17% 68,38
0JSC "Chilonzor buyum bozori" 1.75% 54,876 1.84% 54,87
JSC "Q'zneftmahsulot" 0.00% 34,418 0.00% 34,41
SJSFTC"O'zmarkazimpeks" 3.85% 29,40 3.85% 29,40
0JSC "Uzbekgeofizika" 0.44% 26,136  .440% 16,05
LLC "Banklararo Kredit Byurosi" 16.67% 16,409 16.67% 16,40
REC "UzlnvestProject” 9.80% 12,686 9.80% 12,68
0JSC "Uzshaharsozlik LITI" 0.32% 7,684 0.32% 7,68
Republican stock-exchange "Tashkent” 0.92% 1,535 0.92% 1,53

5,719,562 4,326,61
Less allowance for impairment losses (1,398,252) (1,398,252)
Total investments available-for-sal 4,321,31 2,928,36

Movements in allowances for impairment losses arestments available-for-sale for the years ende®&dember
2008 and 2007 are disclosed in Note 6.
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INVESTMENTS HELD TO MATURITY

Interest to 31 Decembel Interest to 31 Decembel
nominal 2008 nominal 2007

Debt securitie: % %
Uzbekistan Government treasury 5-6% 12,953,234 6-7% 8,601,696
JSC "Kapitalbank" 16% 1,726,827 16% 1,725,337
JSC "Ipak Yulli Bank" 15% 1,037,500 - -
JSC "Hamkorbank" 12% 1,000,000 - -
JSC "DORI - DARMON" 15% 760,500 15% 622,685
JSC "O'ZBEKTELEKOM" - - 20% 200,110
JSC "IKRANGMET" - - 18% 104,537
Total investments held-to-maturity 17,478,06 11,254,36

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the amount afeisitaccrued comprised of UZS 255,068 thousand and
UZS 134,489 thousand, respectively.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Ownership Carrying value Ownership Carrying value
interest interest

Samarkand Car Factc 26.00% 8,054,13 26.00% 6,448,000
O'ZAVTOSANOATLEAZING LLC 49.00% 3,725,83 49.00% 2,940,000
"Ishonch"” LLC 30.00% 639,94 - -
"ASAKA-TRANS-LEASING" LLC - - 50.00% 2,000,000

12,419,91 11,388,00

During 2008 the Group purchased additional 20%varfiership share in “ASAKA- TRANS-LEASING” LLC and as
a result of the acquisition, the Group’s ownerdiipre in the equity of “ASAKA-TRANS-LEASING” LLC ineased
up to 70%. As a result of the acquisition, the @rgained control over “ASAKA-TRANS-LEASING” LLC and
has been consolidated in these financial statements

The percentage held of the above associates repsdsath direct and indirect ownership of the Group

The movements of the investments in associates iisenp

31 December 31 December

200¢ 2007
As at 1 January 11,388,00 -
Purchase cao 600,00 11,388,000
Share of results of associe 2,431,91 -
Investment in associates reclassified from thisgate (2,000,000) -
As at 31 Decembe 12,419,91 11,388,00
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LOANS UNDER REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

31 December 2008
Carrying value Cost of securities

31 December 2007
Carrying value  Cost of securities

of loan pledge of loan pledge
Shares of local companies 2,100,559 1,999,977 503,750 500,00
Total 2,100,55 1,999,97 503,75 500,00

The equity securities received as a pledge aganstse repurchase agreement were recorded by thg Gtaost.
Subsequently, the equity securities are recognizetthidysroup at cost, as there is no active markethi® securities
pledged.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the nominal vafugecurities received as collateral under reveepairchase
agreements amounted to UZS 1,999,977 thousand Z8db00,000 thousand, respectively.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the interest adasn REPO agreements equaled to UZS 100,582 tid wswl
UZS 3,750 thousand, respectively.

20. PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Buildings and Construction in Furniture and Vehicles Intangible assets Total

land progress equipment

At revalued cos
31 December 20( 35,688,89 39,97 12,228,41 1,302,98 1,868,07 51,128,33
Additions 2,543,77 334,22 4,218,49 148,65 10,96 7,256,11
Disposal (2,382,34i (162,87 (28,49: (2,54 (2,576,25i
Transfer 9,02 (26,31! (18,37: 20,93 14,72
31 December 20( 35,859,34 347,87 16,265,66 1,444,07 1,891,21 55,808,18
Additions 901,714 52838 2,579,238 123,58 3,000 3,897,42
Disposal (98,89: (477,51: (98,85 (18,251 (15: (693,671
Transfer 5,43 (35,75t (21,15: 27,30 24,17
31 December 20( 36,667,59 120,49 18,724,89 1,580,71 1,918,23 59,011,92
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 20( (5,399,71: (9,484,02 (1,077,83I (1,334,53: (17,296,101
Charge for the yee (1,879,701 (1,274,591 (187,48 (321,75 (3,663,541
Disposal 301,59 118,45 26,29 2,48 448,82
31 December 20( (6,977,81. (10,640,16° (1,239,02! (1,653,80i (20,510,81!
Charge for the yee (1,735,46! (1,379,25: (141,54t (214,25: (3,470,51°
Disposals 5,922 83,770 16,972 152 106,81
Transfer 22,48 (22,50° 2
31 December 20( (8,684,87: (11,958,15! (1,363,57! (1,867,90° (23,874,511
Net book value
31 December 2008 27,982,720 120,494 6,766,735 17235 50,329 35,137,41
31 December 20C 28,881,53 347,87 5,625,49 205,05 237,40 35,297,36

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, fully deprecias=etta of UZS 6,228,685 thousand and 4,613,157 dhadys
respectively, were included in property and equipitmen

Construction in progress consists of constructiot @efurbishment of branch premises. Upon completassets are
transferred to buildings and premises.

In accordance with alternative accounting treatmerder IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”, biniidand
premises were independently valued as at 31 Dece@dfi8. The valuation was carried out by a Russiaeda
independent appraisal. The management has not ethgladependent valuers and has not carried outusti@ns of
these assets in subsequent years.
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The revaluation reserve for premises included éngtuity is transferred to retained earnings whersthplus

21.

is realised.

As at 31 December 2008, this transfer comprises:

Property and Retained Total
equipment earnings
revaluation
31 December 2008 reserve
Depreciation related to the revaluation reserve &3, 603,842 -
Deferred tax on the above depreciation - (78,762) (78,762)
Transfer of realized revaluation reservi (603,842 525,08 (78,762
As at 31 December 2007, this transfer comprises:
Property and Retained Total
equipment earnings
revaluation
31 December 2007 reserve
Depreciation related to the revaluation reserve E0), 601,589 -
Deferred tax on the above depreciation - (78,468) (78,468)
Effect of changes in income tax rate (224,474) - (224,474)
Transfer of realized revaluation reservi (826,063 523,12: (302,942

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

During the years ended 31 December 2008 and 200Gritwp received financial and non financial asbgtsaking
possession of collateral pledged. As at 31 Decen20®8 and 2007, the assets in amount of UZS 43382,
thousand and UZS 17,730,435 thousand, respectayincluded in non-current assets held for sale.

31 Decembel 31 Decembel
2008 2007
Equipment 32,508,464 15,850,038
Buildings 13,134,811 4,788,851
Others 1,955,579 953,475
47,598,854 21,592,364
Less allowance for impairment losses (4,565,924) (3,861,929)
43,032,93 17,730,43

Total non-current assets held-for-sal

Movements in allowances for impairment losses om-current assets held for sale for the years endddegember

2008 and 2007 are disclosed in Note 6.
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22.

OTHER ASSETS

Other financial assets recorded as loans and
receivables in accordance with IAS 3!

Advances pai

Unrealized income on revaluation - forward contr

Accrued receivable

Advances to Uzbek Republican Currency Exch

Assets under col

Other:

Less allowance for impairment losses

Other non-financial assets:
Low value and short life assets in warehc
Tax settlements, other than income

Property and equipment purchased for transfenemfie lease

Total other asset

31 December

31 December

200¢ 2007
13,397,20 6,742,18
539,203 24,87

367,918

325,792 12,283,23
27,664 111,18
588,108 749,71
15,245,892 19,911,20

(55,073) (112,322)
15,190,819 19,798,87
1,523,505 545,88
1,200,762 878,42
216,500 2,336,00
2,940,767 3,760,31
18,131,58 23,559,18

Movements in allowances for impairment losses dwewoassets for the years ended 31 December 20080&Tdare

disclosed in Note 6.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the amount ofestteaccrued comprised of UZS 104,977 thousand and

UZS 65,712 thousand, respectively.
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23.

DUE TO BANKS

Loans from banks and financial institutions:

Loans from Export Import Bank, Korea
Loans from Landesbank Berlin AG
Loans from Commerzbank

Loans from Asian Development Bank
Loans from HypoVereinsbank

Loans from Societe Generale Bank
Loans from Banco Santander Central Hispano
Loans from Dresdner Bank

Loans from Raiffeisen Bank

Loans from the Central Bank of the RUz
Loans from Microcreditbank

Total loans from banks and financial institutions

Deposits from Halk Bank

Deposits from Ipoteka Bank

Deposits from Credit-Standard Bank
Deposits from Sadirat Iran Bank
Deposits from Trast Bank

Deposits from UT Bank

Deposits from Ravnak Bank

Deposits from UzKDB Bank

Deposits from Galla Bank

Deposits from National Bank of the RUz
Deposits from Kapital Bank
Correspondent accounts with other banks

Total due to banks

Landesbank Berlin AG

31 December

31 December

200¢ 2007
112,239,995 43,124,845
45,605,292 56,806,640
23,111,960 28,890,815
15,264,713 15,493,115
9,238,508 13,957,285
8,282,687 9,170,092
4,124,728 5,734,335
2,355,630 4,268,238
991,422 1,493,152
760,970 884,954
16,880 105,993
22,992,785 179,929,464
31,420,890 21,905,305
29,263,665 10,326,918
6,965,701 1,290,714
6,066,907 2,980,263
3,831,122 2,387,641
3,092,599 1,292,286
2,202,018 2,060,385
1,676,740 -
835,812 -
- 28,265,444
- 2,581,487
1,482,048 1,108,031
308,830,28 254,127,93

Credit line from Bank Gesellschaft Berlin AG wadlyfuransferred to Landesbank Berlin AG after mergéthose
banks on 29 August 2006. As at 31 December 200§ 4&,605,292 thousand (31 December 2007: UZS 5806
thousand) represent an outstanding balance of S8M&0O loans totaling UZS 30,802,558 thousand (exjaivt of
EUR 15,023 thousand at exchange rate as at 31 [ere2d08) (31 December 2007: UZS 40,324,777 thalsan
(equivalent of EUR 21,717 thousand at exchangeasatat 31 December 2007) and one Swiss Franc tdaling
UZS 14,716,987 thousand (equivalent of CHF 11,860isand at exchange rate as at 31 December 2008):(RZS
16,346,432 thousand (equivalent of CHF 14,618 thodsat exchange rate as at 31 December 2007) mierest

accrued.

The repayment of the principle and interests on oaBwiss Franc is secured by the guarantees ofithistry of
Finance of the Republic of Uzbekistan. The esthblisinterest rate on these loans is EURIBOR+0.8@&#@annum.
The funds raised were used to grant loans to custmwith purpose to finance the purchase of equiprfar
consumer goods production at the above establisttetkst rate plus fixed interest rate of 3.5%edwutned as a

margin of the Group.

The Group is obliged to make the repayment of pplecand interest in twelve consecutive semi-anmsahliments.
Maturity of these loans is dependent on terms anmdliions of each sub-loan, granted by the Group fthase

funds.

Commerzbank

Credit line from Commerzbank in the amount of UZ%141,960 thousand (31 December 2007: UZS 28,890,81
thousand) represents an outstanding balance ofHiwe loans of UZS 22,597,018 thousand (equivatériEUR
11,021 at exchange rate as at 31 December 200&)é8&mber 2007: UZS 28,344,510 thousand (equivaleBUR
15,265 thousand at exchange rate as at 31 Dece&t@B@) plus accrued interest amount. The establistietest rate



on this credit line is EURIBOR+0.95% per annum. Tineds raised were further granted to customers pitrpose
to finance the purchase of equipment for consurmedg production at the above established inteatstplus fixed
interest rate of 4%, determined as a margin ofataup.

The Group is obliged to make the repayment of pplecand interest in nine consecutive semi-annushiiments.
Maturity of these loans is dependent on terms amdliions of each sub-loan, granted by the Group ftbese
funds.

Asian Development Bank (ADB)

Credit line from ADB in the amount of UZS 15,26437thousand (31 December 2007: UZS 15,493,115 timol}sa
represents an outstanding balance of two USD ltatating UZS 15,101,513 thousand (equivalent of UBLB41
thousand at exchange rate as at 31 December 2808)dcember 2007: UZS 15,301,980 thousand (equitale
USD 11,862 thousand at exchange rate at 31 Dece2®i&1)) plus accrued interest amount. The estadishterest
rate on first loan with the outstanding balanc&@s 6,083,231 thousand as at 31 December 200& ¢hiealent of
USD 4,367 thousand at exchange rate as at 31 Decetib8) is pool-based rate of 6.12% (internallyed@ped rate
of ADB). The established interest rate on secoah lwith the outstanding balance of UZS 9,018,3%0idhnd as at
31 December 2008 (the equivalent USD 6,474 thouaaedchange rate as at the balance sheet datefeisnined at
LIBOR+0.6%. The grace period is 3 years with majudiite at 15 October 2015. Repayment of principleiatedest
is secured by the guarantees of the Ministry of Firasf the Republic of Uzbekistan.

HypoVereinsbhank

Credit line from Hypo Vereinsbank in the amount &£3J9,238,508 (31 December 2007: UZS 13,957,285stuad)
represent an outstanding balance of four Euro ldataing UZS 9,212,268 thousand (equivalent of EWR93
thousand at exchange rate as at 31 December 2808)dcember 2007: UZS 13,911,370 thousand (equitale
EUR 7,492 thousand at exchange rate as at 31 Dece20b7)), plus accrued interest amount. The intaeges for
the above mentioned loans vary from EURIBOR+0.95% WRIOR+1.24%. Repayment of principle and intersst i
done in eight consecutive semi-annual installments.

Societe Generale Bank

Credit line from Societe Generale in the amount@fs 8,282,687 thousand (31 December 2007: UZS 90920
thousand) represent an outstanding balance of learototaling UZS 8,275,253 thousand (equivalenEdR 4,036
thousand at exchange rate as at 31 December 2BD8&gcember 2007: UZS 9,159,742 thousand (equivafdBUR

4,933 thousand at exchange rate at 31 Decembe))2@0is accrued interest amount.

The established interest rate is EURIBOR+0.7% pe&um, with maturity on 23 June 2013. The funds chisere
used to finance the state utility entity at the abestablished rate plus fixed interest margin ofGneup. Repayment
of principle and interest is secured by the guaemtd the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Ekistan.

Banco Santander Central Hispano

Credit line from Banco Santander in the amount a5WU1,124,728 thousand as at 31 December 2008 (8&nkeer
2007: UZS 5,734,335 thousand) represent an outsigibaélance of two Euro loans totaling UZS 4,047,#iousand
(equivalent of EUR 1,974 thousand at exchangeastat 31 December 2008) (31 December 2007: UZSS R 60
thousand (equivalent of EUR 3,033 thousand at exghaate as at 31 December 2007)), plus accruedesit
amount. The first loan in the amount of UZS 4,098,&housand (equivalent of EUR 1,199 thousand ettanxge rate
as at the balance sheet date) with fixed inteegstaf 5.97% per annum is to be repaid in severteasecutive semi-
annual installments. The repayment of principle iaterest is secured by the guarantees of the MynigtFinance of
the Republic of Uzbekistan. The second loan in dh®unt of UZS 1,589,029 thousand (EUR equivalerg 77
thousand as at 31 December, 2008) with establistierest rate of EURIBOR+0.6% per annum is to hpaiek within
twelve consecutive semi-annual installments. Theses were granted by the Group to small and mee@it@rprises
to purchase equipments for production of consurmedg, at above established rate plus fixed intenesgin of the
Group.

Dresdner Bank
Credit line from Dresdner Bank in the amount of UZ855,630 thousand (31 December 2007: UZS 4,288,23
thousand) represent an outstanding balance of learototaling UZS 2,351,115 thousand (the equivtaidR 1,147

thousand at exchange rate as at 31 December 2808)dcember 2007: UZS 4,257,711 thousand, the algumi/
EUR 2,293 thousand at exchange rate as at 31 Dece2@®7), plus accrued interest amount. The @skhedul
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24.

interest rate is EURIBOR+0.65% per annum. This la@s used by the Group to grant loans to small aadium
enterprises to purchase equipments for consumedsgpmduction and rendering services. The loansmall and
medium enterprises were granted at the above edtabll rate plus fixed margin of the Group. The yapent of
principle and interest is to be made in ten contbeegemi-annual installments.

Raifeissenbank

Credit line from Raifeissen Bank in the amount a£3J991,422 thousand (31 December 2007: UZS 1,493,15
thousand) represent an outstanding balance of ane IBan totaling UZS 967,780 thousand, (the edaiMaEUR

472 thousand at exchange rate as at 31 Decemb@8) 481 December 2007: UZS 1,459,468 thousand (the
equivalent of EUR 786 thousand at exchange raéd 3% December 2007), plus accrued interest amount.

The established interest rate is LIBOR+1.5% pewuannThis loan was advanced by the Group to smallraadium
enterprises to purchase equipments for producfi@emsumer goods and rendering services, at abstebleshed rate
plus fixed interest margin of the Group.

Microcreditbank

Borrowings from Mikrokreditbank in UZS 16,880 thamsl (31 December 2007: UZS 105,992 thousand reftrase
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2008 pluseatinterest amount. The established interestorathis loan is
2.5%. The related credit risk on these loans isbg the Group.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the amount ofuadcmnterest comprised UZS 1,043,280 thousand afg U
1,189,273 thousand, respectively.

In accordance with the contractual terms of thenx¢orom Asian Development Bank, the Group is regflito
maintain certain financial ratios, particularly witbgard to loans issued to customers to custonmepesit ratio,
capital adequacy ratio, maximum exposure to sibghkeower ratio and return on assets ratio.

CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

31 Decembel 31 Decembel
2008 2007
Repayable on demand 790,045,259 702,583,537
Time deposits 156,332,790 129,469,063
Total customer account 946,378,04 832,052,60
31 Decembel 31 Decembel
2008 2007
Analysis by sector:
Manufacturing 644,868,963 566,966,761
Individuals 110,071,761 96,774,746
Government 65,135,001 57,266,487
Trade 32,858,024 28,888,671
Construction 21,931,299 19,281,929
Insurance 16,225,859 14,265,724
Non-budget organizations 9,920,053 8,721,680
Transportation and communication 6,894,021 6,061,202
Other 38,473,068 33,825,400
Total customer account 946,378,04 832,052,60

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, customer accofitdZS 29,716,086 thousand and UZS 10,616,601 tls
respectively, were held as a security against lettecsedit issued and other contingent liabilitids.at 31 December
2008 and 2007, customer accounts of UZS 74,72%8@0sand and UZS 22,004,000 thousand, respectivwelse
held as a security against guarantees issued.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the customer atza@i UZS 609,209,295 thousand and UZS 468,362,565
thousand were due to 2 and 2 customers, respggtwkich individually exceed 10% of Group’s equity.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the amount ofuadcinterest comprised UZS 1,348,884 thousand afd U
675,825 thousand, respectively.

36



25.

OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

Interest 31 Decembe Interest 31 Decembe
rate 200¢ rate 2007
% %
Long-term borrowings fror
international financial institutior
Instituto De Credit 0.30% 15,641,87 0.30% 14,162,79
International Financial Corporati LIBOR+5% 2,248,646 LIBOR+5% 3,481,10
Long term borrowings from non-
budget funds (Employment fur 1.75% - 2.3% 582,083 1.75% - 2.3% 600,36
Long-term borrowings from the
Ministry of Finance of the 1%-7.5% 1%-7.5%
Republic of Uzbekistz UZIBOR+0.2% 10,141,378 UZIBOR+0.2% 11,313,53
Total other borrowed funds 28,613,98 29,557,80

Instituto De Credito (ICO)

Credit line from ICO in the amount of UZS 15,64158housand (31 December 2007: UZS 14,162,795 timolysa
represent an outstanding balance of Euro loaningtd)ZS 15,629,894 thousand (equivalent of EUR 3 B®usand
at exchange rate as at the balance sheet datd)g@dmber 2007: UZS 14,154,615 thousand (equivale@BUR
7,623 thousand at exchange rate as at 31 Decerib@), Dlus accrued interest amount. The establigitedest rate
is 0.3% per annum. The purpose of this loan isranfce the water supply improvement in Bukhara megidaturity
date is 20 May 2033. It was provided to state yt#intity at the above established rate plus fixeer@st margin of
the Group. Repayment of principle and interest susel by the guarantees of the Ministry of Financehef
Republic of Uzbekistan.

International Finance Corporation (IFC)

Credit line from IFC in the amount of UZS 2,248,6dtusand (31 December 2007: UZS 3,481,104 thogsand
represent an outstanding balance of USD loan mgaliZS 2,227,407 thousand (the equivalent of USEB4,
thousand at exchange rate as at 31 December, 2RD®ecember 2007: UZS 3,437,850 thousand (thevabgut of
USD 2,665 thousand at exchange rate as at 31 Dece&tib7), plus accrued interest amount. The esteddi interest
rate is LIBOR+5% per annum with maturity date ofM&y 2010. The purpose of this loan is to financestmall and
medium enterprises at the above established rassfiged interest margin of the Bank.

Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Uzbekistan.

Credit line of USD 20,000 thousand from ADB was yided to the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of
Uzbekistan for the development of small and medemterprises. Based on the loan agreement the Minigt
Finance of the Republic of Uzbekistan financed @reup using credit line of ADB on 7 June 2004 te tbtal
amount of USD 6,500 thousand which was denominatétztbek Soums.

The established interest rate is UZIBOR+0.2%, whegresents margin of the Ministry of Finance of Republic of
Uzbekistan. The repayment of principle and inteieshade semi-annually on 15 March and 15 Septenth@rce
period is 3 years and maturity in 15 September 2018.

Credit line from the Ministry of Finance of the Réftia of Uzbekistan is provided for project finant®ans in
accordance with the instructions of the governnag¢fitxed interest rate of 7.5% per annum. All rethtredit risks on
these project finance loans represent the Banlgssxe.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the amount ofiadcdnterest comprised UZS 956,660 thousand aris2 Q@5
thousand, respectively.

In accordance with the contractual terms of thengoftom IFC, the Group is required to maintain @erfinancial
ratios, particularly with regard to its Risk weigtht€apital Adequacy, Total loan portfolio in one istiy sector,
Open Loan Exposure, Maturity Mismatch Ratio (USDgtMity Mismatch Ratio (EUR), Maturity Mismatch Ratio
(UZS), Aggregate Maturity Mismatch Ratio, Single Haurrency Short Position, Aggregate Hard CurrencgriSh
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Position, Single Client Exposure Ratio, Single Grdxposure Ratio, Aggregate large loans to singltigs (those
exceeding (5%)of Shareholder's equity) shall notee’c300% of shareholders' equity, excluding loand an

obligations that are fully guaranteed by Uzbek gowemt, Current Ratio, Fixed assets and investmemist «orth,
and Related Party Exposure Ratio.

26. OTHER LIABILITIES

31 December 31 December
200¢ 2007
Other financial liabilites:
Payable to suppliers, contractors and purchasers 2,114,164 1,279,80
2,114,164 1,279,80
Other non-financial liabilites:
Income tax payable 2,790,442
Taxes payable, other than income tax 1,374,314 273,72
Accounts payable to employees 761,971 598,59
Other 674,635 106,29
5,601,362 978,61
Total other liabilities 7,715,52¢ 2,258,42:

27. SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s share capitapcised of the following:

Authorized Inflation effect Total share
capital capital
(UZS'000 (UZS'000 (UZS'000
Ordinary shares 6,580,300 34,121,566 40,701,866
6,580,300 34,121,566 40,701,866

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s share camtapcised of the following:

Authorized Inflation effect Total share
capital capital
(UZS'000 (UZS'000 (UZS'000
Ordinary shares 6,580,300 34,121,566 40,701,866
6,580,300 34,121,566 40,701,866

The below table provides a reconciliation of thenber of shares outstanding as at 31 December 20082@07,
respectively:

Ordinary shares

Share’000
31 December 2006 54,750
Issue of shares 11,053
31 December 2007 65,803
Increase of numbers due to the decrease of nonhad 65,803
31 December 2008 131,606

38



On 29 October 2007 the Shareholders made a dedisidecrease the nominal value of the shares fr@&8 W00
thousand to UZS 50 thousand. The decrease in ttmnabvalue of the shares has occurred in ordeotoply with
the legislation of the Republic of Uzbekistan. Asesult of that decision, the number of outstandshgres has
doubled.

On 21 June 2007, the Shareholders made a decigsianctease the share capital of the Group by tramsée
dividends into the share capital in the amount d6U,105,300 thousand.

During the year 2008, the Group paid dividends o5l8/141,384 thousand.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Group isrgy pa financial instruments with off-balance shesk in order to
meet the needs of its customers. These instrumientdying varying degrees of credit risk, are nellected in the
balance sheet.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit loss undettingent liabilities and commitments to extendddrein the
event of non-performance by the other party wherecalinterclaims, collateral or security prove valasleis
represented by the contractual amounts of thoseimsnts.

The Group uses the same credit control and managepoécies in undertaking off-balance sheet commaitts as it
does for on-balance operations.

The risk-weighted amount is obtained by applying itrednversion factor and counterparty risk weighsing
according to the principles employed by the Basle @itee on Banking Supervision.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the nominal dracnamounts were:

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Nominal Risk weighted Nominal Risk weighted

Contingent liabilities and amount amount amount amount

credit commitments
Letter of credit 211,569,690 105,784,845 93,350,148 46,675,07-
Guarantees issued and other sirr

instruments 45,439,965 22,719,983 35,85,2 17,947,64:
Commitments on unused cre

lines 24,403,461 12,201,731 25,589,157 12,794,57¢
Total contingent liabilities and

credit commitments 281,413,116 140,706,559 154,591 77,417,29¢

The Group’s commitments to extend loans within @dusredit lines limits that are conditioned baseddborrower’s
financial performance, debt service and other tregk characteristics. Guarantees are grantedoup ears,
depending on a project.

Capital commitments— As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group badaterial capital commitments.

Operating lease commitments- As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group leathaterial operating lease
commitments.

Legal proceedings— From time to time and in the normal course ofibess, claims against the Group can be
received from customers and counterparties. Managei of the opinion that no material unaccruestés will be
incurred and accordingly no provision has been niadeese financial statements.

Taxation — Provisions of the Uzbek tax legislation are somes$ inconsistent and may have more than one
interpretation, which allows the Uzbek tax authiesitto take decisions based on their own arbitnaterpretation of
these provisions. In practice, the Uzbek tax autiesroften interpret the tax legislation not ivdar of the taxpayers,
who have to resort to court proceeding to defemd fhosition against the tax authorities. It shobédnoted that the
Uzbek tax authorities can use the clarificatiorsuésl by the juridicial bodies that have introdudeel ¢oncept of
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“unjustified tax benefit”, “primary commercial goalf transaction” and the criteria of “commercial pose
(substance) of transaction”.

Such uncertainty could lead to temporary taxablestifices occurred due to loan impairment provisgmsincome
tax liabilities being treated by the tax authorittessunderstatement of the tax base. The managerhtr Group is
confident that applicable taxes have all been a&xtrand, consequently, creation of respective pravssiis not
required.

Due to the presence in Uzbek commercial legislatiord tax legislation in particular, of provisioakowing more

than one interpretation, and also due to the madtieveloped in a generally unstable environmenthleytax

authorities of making arbitrary judgment of businestgivities, if a particular treatment based on Big@ment's
judgment of the Group’s business activities wabdaochallenged by the tax authorities, the Group nyagdsessed
additional taxes, penalties and interest. Suchrtaiogy may relate to loss and impairment provisiand the market
level for the pricing of deals. The Group beliewbst it has already made all tax payments, and therefio

allowance has been made in the financial statem€&atsyears remain open to review by the tax autlesrfor three
years.

Operating environment — The Group’s principal business activities arthimithe Republic of Uzbekistan. Laws and
regulations affecting the business environmenthim Republic of Uzbekistan are subject to rapid geanand the
Group’s assets and operations could be at riskalnegative changes in the political and businesg@nment in the
world.

Specific volatility in global and Uzbek’s financialmarkets — In recent months a number of major economies around
the world have experienced volatile capital andlitrmarkets. A number of major global financialtingions have
either been placed into bankruptcy, taken over bgrdihancial institutions and/or supported by goveent funding.

As a consequence of the recent market turmoil pitalaand credit markets both globally and in theb&kistan,
notwithstanding any potential economic stabilizatineasures that may be put into place by the Goveraighe
Uzbekistan, there exists economic uncertaintiesosading the continual availability, and cost, oédit both for the
Group and its counterparties, the potential fomeooic uncertainties to continue in the foreseeditiere and, as a
consequence, the potential that assets may notbeeied at their carrying amount in the regular sewf business,
and a corresponding impact on the Group’s profitgbi

Recoverability of financial assets- As a result of recent economic turmoil in capitadla&redit markets globally, and
the consequential economic uncertainties existingtdalance sheet date, there exists the potémishssets may not
be recovered at their carrying amount in the regedarse of business.

As at 30 December 2008, the Group has financiattasamounting to UZS 1,402,530,035 thousand (a3lat
December 2007: UZS 1,235,991,792 thousand). Theveeability of these financial assets depends &rgel extent
on the efficacy of the fiscal measures and othersomes and other actions, beyond the Group’s contralertaken
within various countries to achieve economic stgbéind recovery. The recoverability of the Groupisaficial assets
is determined based on conditions prevailing anfrination available as at balance sheet date.s Ithe
management’s opinion that no additional provision fmancial assets is needed at present, basedrevailing
conditions and available information.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 9 December 2008, the Shareholders of the Bapkoagd increase of the share capital up to UZS@®@)N00
thousand through increase in the number of autedréhares of the Bank up to 6,000 thousand of sh@ifee Bank
registered the additional shares on 30 Decembe8.Zlfe decision regarding the timing and pricehaf placement
of shares, as well as the number of shares todmeglhas been set by the Council of the Bank inrdance with
legislation of the Republic of Uzbekistan.
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30.

As at 31 March 2009 the Bank's share capital comptize following:

Share capital Share capital
authorized paid-in

Ordinary shares Uzs’'000 UzS’000

The Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Uzbekistan 199,946,750 169,946,750
JSC "Uzavtosanoat" 50,053,250 2,553,250
The Fund of Reconstruction and Developr

of the Republic of Uzbekistan 50,000,000 50,000,000
Total 300,000,000 222,500,000

During January 2009, the Fund of Reconstruction Badelopment of the Republic of Uzbekistan has pased
1,000 thousand shares for UZS 50,000,000 thousaddhe Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Uztskin has
purchased 392 thousand shares for UZS 19,600,@0®dhd, with purchases made at par. Thus, UZS 6960
thousand of share capital was paid-in by cash. €seamount of UZS 146,319,700 thousand of shargatapas
paid-in by capitalized net income. As a result & #ibovementioned share capital increase and paynieaiSroup’s
share capital and the shareholders structure 3k ltarch 2009 changed as follows:

31 March 31 December
2009, 2008,
% %
SHAREHOLDERS
The Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Uzbekistan 76.38 98.33
JSC "Uzavtosanoat"” 1.15 61.
The Fund of Reconstruction and Developr
of the Republic of Uzbekistan 22.47 -
Total 100.00 100.00

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Related parties or transactions with related partis defined by IAS 24 “Related party disclosuresgiresent:

(a) Parties that directly, or indirectly through one asrsintermediaries: control, or are controlled byare under
common control with, the Group (this includes pasesubsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries); havéngrest in
the Group that gives then significant influencerabe Bank; and that have joint control over the@r,

(b) Associates — enterprises on which the Group hasfisignt influence and which is neither a subsigiaor a
joint venture of the investor;

(c) Joint ventures in which the Group is a venturer;
(d) Members of key management personnel of the Groiig parent;
(e) Close members of the family of any individuals reddrto in (a) or (d);

(f) Parties that are entities controlled, jointly coli&rd or significantly influenced by, or for which sidicant
voting power in such entity resides with, directlyirmdirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or {e)

(g) Post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of leyges of the Group, or of any entity that is a relatarty
of the Group.

In considering each possible related party relatigmsattention is directed to the substance ofrdtationship, and
not merely the legal form.
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The Group had the following transactions outstag@is at 31 December 2008 and 2007 with relatedepart

Cash and balances with Central Bank of

the Republic of Uzbekist:
-other related parties

Loans to custome
-other related parties

Allowance for impairment loss
-other related parties

Investments held-to-matur
-the parent company
-other related parties

Investments in associa

-the parent company

-entities with significant influence or
joint control over the entity

Due to bank
-other related parties

Customer accour
-the parent company
-other related parties

Other borrowed func
-the parent company

Letters of credit and other contigent
liabilities

-the parent company

-other related parties

balances

31 December 200:

264,520,260
264,520,26

352,441,669
352,441,66

(3,815,463)
(3,815,46:

12,941,207

12,941,20
4,166,095

7,102,903
11,268,99

86,310,476
86,310,47

528,312,849
201,898,275
730,211,12.

10,723,461
10,723,46

199,068,445

199,068,44
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Related party Total category
as per financial
statements
caption

329,180,37

806,434,49

(68,297,46:

17,478,06

12,419,91

308,830,28

946,378,04

28,613,98

281,413,11

balances

31 December 200

397,268,885

397,268,88

213,700,012

213,700,01

(1,500,965)

(1,500,96!

8,601,697
52,668
8,654,36

2,940,000

8,448,000
11,388,00

884,954
884,95

546,714,660
7,104,997

553,819,65

11,313,535
11,313,53

99,536,864
37,829,087

137,365,95

Related party Total category
as per financial
statements
caption

424,084,93

630,139,73

(55,285,39¢

11,254,36

11,388,00

254,127,93

832,052,60

29,557,80

154,834,59



31.

Included in the consolidated income statement lier years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 are thwifa
amounts which arose due to transactions with relpteties:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 200: 31 December 200
Related party Total category  Related party  Total category
transactions  as per financial transactions  as per financial

statements statements
caption caption
Interest income
-the parent company 22,960,905 13,115,818
-other related parties 9,564,619 1,187,855
32,525,52 64,484,42 14,303,67 43,146,88
Interest expense
-the parent company (1,964,504) (2,764,199)
-other related parties (382,083) (162,402)
(2,346,58 (30,335,43: (2,926,60: (28,373,57-
Provision for impairment losses
interest bearing assets
-other related parties 1,422,249 -
1,422,24 (18,798,31( - (13,415,94:
Fee and commission income
-the parent company - 8,601,289
-other related parties 15,840,006 780,454
15,840,00 38,900,88 9,381,74 25,128,57
Fee and commission expense
-other related parties - (582
(5,741,44¢ (58: (2,148,20:.
Operating expenses
- Key management personnel
compensation (120,193) (75,121)
(120,193) (42,942,504) (75,121) (28,118,068)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that esiti the Group will be able to continue as a gaiogcern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through thtngsation of the debt and equity balance.

The Management Board reviews the capital structurea semi-annual basis. As a part of this revidw, Board
considers the cost of capital and the risks astmtiwith each class of capital. Based on recomnienmdaof the
Board, the Group balances its overall capital stmecthrough the payment of dividends, new shartgesss well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existiakt.

Capital management of the Group is carried out ekbpment of policies, taking strategic and tadtamcisions by
the Council of the Group, its Credit Commission,séis and Liabilities Management Committee and Credi
Committee of the Group.

For decreasing risks related to capital managentémet,Group designed and implemented a system ofatapi
management. Principles of formation and method&inétioning of this system are clearly stipulatedhie Assets
and Liabilities Management Policy and Credit Polityh® Group, approved by the Council of the Group.

The Group’s overall capital risk management polewmains unchanged from 2007.
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32.

33.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is defined as the amount at which ttetriment could be exchanged in a current transadteiween
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s lengtanisaction, other than in forced or liquidation sdlee estimates
presented herein are not necessarily indicativéefimounts the Group could realize in a marketaxgé from the
sale of its full holdings of a particular instrunten

The fair value of financial assets and liabilit@smpared with the corresponding carrying amounhédonsolidated
balance sheet of the Group is presented below:

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount
Due from banks 215,404,502 215302, 135,893,761 135,893,76
Loans under revers
repurchase agreements 2,100,559 2,100,559 503,750 503,75
Due to banks 308,830,287 308,830,28 254,127,938 254,127,93
Customer accounts 946,378,049 94503D 832,052,600 832,052,60
Other borrowed funds 28,613,982 28,613,982 29,557,803 29,557,8C

The fair value of loans to customers can not besoreal reliably as it is not practicable to obtairrke&information
or apply any other valuation techniques on suchunstnts.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Quantitative measures established by regulationiexpiply Basel Committee to ensure capital adequaayireethe
Group to maintain minimum amounts and ratios ddlt(8%) and tier 1 capital (4%) to risk weightedets.

The ratio was calculated according to the princi@mployed by the Basel Committee by applying theviefig risk
estimates to the assets and off-balance sheet ¢omanis net of allowances for impairment losses:

Estimate Description of position
0% Cash and balances with the Central Bank of Uzbekist
0% State debt securities
20% Loans and advances to banks for up to 1 year
100% Loans to customers
100% Guarantees
50% Obligations and commitments on unused loans withrhial maturity
of over 1 year
100% Other assets
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200¢ 2007
Movement in tier 1 capital:
At 1 January 174,582,112 166,270,588
Share capital - -
Profit 21,928,386 8,154,754
Other (3,340,710) 156,770
At 31 December 193,169,788 174,582,112
Composition of regulatoty capital (a):
Tier 1 capital
Share capital 40,701,866 40,701,866
Disclosed reserves 141,565,593 122,253,511
Total qualifying tier 1 capital 182,267,459 162,955,377
Revaluation reserve 10,902,329 11,626,735
Total regulatory capit 193,169,78 174,582,11
Capital Ratios:
Tier 1 capital 28.78% 26.12%
Total capital 31.74% 27.79%

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Management of risk is fundamental to the Group’skiddy business and is an essential element of ttoei3s
operations. The main risks inherent to the Groop'srations are those related to:

e Credit exposures
e Liquidity risk

e Market risk

¢ Interest rate risk
e Currency risk

The Group recognizes that it is essential to hdfigient and effective risk management processqdane. To enable
this, the Group has established a risk managemamiefvork, whose main purpose is to protect the @Bfoam risk
and allow it to achieve its performance objectivBEstough the risk management framework, the Groapages the
following risks:

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk which is thsk that one party to a financial instrument will fai discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur anfiiel loss.

Where appropriate, and in the case of most lo&esGGroup obtains collateral and corporate guarantee

Commitments to extend credit represent unusedgtdf credit in the form of loans, guaranteesettets of credit.
The credit risk on off-balance sheet financial iastents is defined as a probability of losses dubednability of a
counterparty to comply with the contractual terms aodditions. With respect to credit risk on comngtrts to
extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed ttmss in an amount equal to the total unused comemits.
However, the likely amount of the loss is less tHentotal unused commitments since most commitnenéxtend
credit are contingent upon customers maintainiregiic credit standards. The Group applies the saradit policy
to the contingent liabilities as it does to thedpake sheet financial instruments, i.e. the onedasethe procedures
for approving the grant of loans, using limits tatigate the risk, and current monitoring. The Graupnitors the
term to maturity of off balance sheet contingenbtiesause longer term commitments generally haveaeagrdegree
of credit risk than short-term commitments.
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Maximum exposure

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk vagemificantly and is dependant on both individuaks and

general market economy risks.

The following table presents the maximum exposorerédit risk of financial assets and contingeabilities. For
financial assets the maximum exposure equals #rrgiog value of those assets prior to any offsetatlateral. For
financial guarantees and other contingent liabgitihe maximum exposure to credit risk is the marinamount the
Group would have to pay if the guarantee was caltedr in the case of commitments, if the loan anoevas called

on.

Due from bank

Loans to custome
Investments available-for-s:
Loans under reverse repurch
agreemen

Investments held to matur
Other financial asse

Due from bank

Loans to custome

Investments available-for-s:

Loans under reverse repurchi
agreemen

Investments held to matur

Other financial asse

Maximum
exposure

215,404,50
806,434,49
4,321,31

2,100,55
17,478,06
15,245,89

Maximum
exposure

135,893,76
630,139,73
2,928,36

503,75
11,254,36
19,911,20

Offset Net exposure

after offset

215,404,50
806,434,49
4,321,31

2,100,55
17,478,06
15,245,89

Offset Net exposure

after offset

135,893,76
630,139,73
2,928,36

503,75
11,254,36
19,911,20

31 December
200¢
Net exposure
after offset and
collateral

215,404,50

2,460,47
4,321,31

Collateral
pledged

803,974,02

2,100,55
17,478,06
15,245,89

31 December
2007
Net exposure
after offset and
collateral

135,893,76

2,370,52
2,928,36

Collateral
pledged

627,769,20

503,75
11,254,36
19,911,20

Financial assets are graded according to the ducredit rating they have been issued by an intesnally regarded
agency. The highest possible rating is AAA. Investimgrade financial assets have ratings from AAABBB.
Financial assets which have ratings lower than BBBclassed as speculative grade.

The following table details the credit ratings wfancial assets held by the Group:

Due from bank

Loans to custome
Investments available-for-sale
Investments held to matur

Due from bank

Loans to custome
Investments available-for-s:
Investments held to matur

AA
9,371,48¢

AA
41,935,68¢

31 December

200¢
A BBB <BBB Not rated Total
69,688,14( 31,760,87¢ 60,994,73. 43,589,26¢ 215,404,50:.
- - - 806,434,49: 806,434,49:
- - - 413210 4,321,310
- - - 17,4081 17,478,061
31 December
2007
A BBB <BBB Not rated Total
7,709,81¢ 465,74¢  33,046,40¢ 52,736,10: 135,893,76:
- - - 630,139,73¢ 630,139,73¢
- - - 2,928,36: 2,928,36:

- 11,254,365 11,254,365

The banking industry is generally exposed to craslik through its financial assets and contingeriilities. Credit
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risk exposure of the Group is concentrated withanRepublic of Uzbekistan. The exposure is monitane a regular
basis to ensure that the credit limits and credittiiness guidelines established by the Group rigkagement policy
are not breached.

The Group enters into numerous transactions wikeredunterparties are not rated by internationalgatgencies.

The Group has developed an internal rating modedeth on the principles and methods used by intenstrating
agencies for the assessment of credit risk of catpdorrowers. The rating of borrowers is base@dmmanalysis of
the financial ratios of the borrower, and an analpdithe market and industry sector, in which thedwer operates.
The model also takes into consideration variouditgtise factors, such as management efficiencythedborrower’s
market share.

The application of the internal rating model resut a standardized approach in the analysis ofola@rs and
provides a quantitative assessment of the creditwvmss of a borrower that does not have a ratnogn fan
international rating agency. The model takes intmant specific local market conditions.

The quality of the internal rating model is examireda regular basis through an assessment of tsogfféctiveness
and validity. The Group revises the model when dgficies are identified.

The following table details the carrying value o$ets that are impaired and the aging of thoseatteapast due but
not impaired:
Financial assets past due but not impaired
Neither past 0-3 months 3-6 months 6 months Greater Financial asset: 31 December

due nor to 1 year thanone thathave been 2008

impaired year impaired Total
Loans to customers 454,778,003 - - - - 351,656,491 806,434,49
Investments available-for-sale 297,158 - - - - 4,024,152 4,321,31
Non-current assets held-for-sale 19,516,308 - - - - 23,516,622 43,032,93
Other assets 2,940,767 - - - - 15,190,819 18,131,58

Financial assets past due but not impaired
Neither past 0-3 months 3-6 months 6 months Greater Financial asset: 31 December

due nor to 1year thanone that have been 2007

impaired year impaired Total
Loans to custome - : . . . 630,139,73 630,139,73
Investments available-for-si : . . . 2,928,36. 2,928,36
Non-current assets held-for-< 5,742,32 : . . . 11,988,100 17,730,43
Other assets 773,463 - - - - 22,785,726 23,559,18

Geographical concentration

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, all loans andreéato customers are placed in the Republic okkiztan and
customer deposits are taken from companies andidhudils of the Republic of Uzbekistan.
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The geographical concentration of financial asaatsliabilities is set out below:

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with the Central
Bank of the Republic of Uzbekistan
Due from banks
Loans under reverse
repurchase agreements
Loans to customers
Investments available-for-sale
Investments held to maturity
Investment in associates
Other financial assets

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks

Customer accounts
Debt securities issued
Other borrowed funds
Other financial liabilities

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with the Central
Bank of the Republic of Uzbekistan
Due from banks
Loans under reverse
repurchase agreements
Loans to customers
Investments available-for-sale
Investments held to maturity
Investment in associates
Other financial assets

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks

Customer accounts
Debt securities issued
Other borrowed funds
Other financial liabilities

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

Republic of OECD Non-OECD 31 December
Uzbekistan countries countries 2008
Total
329,330, - - 329,180,37
130,982,320 9,796,882 4,625,300 215,404,5C
2,100,559 - - 2,100,5¢
806,434,494 - - 806,434,4¢
3,966,400 - 3840 4,321,31
17,478,061 - - 17,478,0€
12,419,919 - - 12,419,91
15,190,819 - - 15,190,81
1,317,752,94 79,796,88 4,980,21 1,402,530,0z
87,802,601 205,193,127 15,834,559 308,830,2¢
946,378,049 - - 946,378,04
11,581 - - 11,5¢
10,730,275 17,883,707 - 28,613,9¢
2,114,164 - - 2,114,1¢
1,047,036,670 223,076,834 15,834,559 1,285,948,0€
270,716,27 (143,279,95 (10,854,34
Republic of OECD Non-OECD 31 December
Uzbekistan countries countries 2007
Total
A7 462 - 137,476 424,084,97
85,791,237 48,897,685 1,204,839 135,893,7¢
503,750 - - 503,7¢
630,139,738 - - 630,139,7¢
2,928,36 - - 2,928,3¢
11,254,365 - - 11,254,3¢
11,388,000 - - 11,388,0C
19,798,878 - - 19,798,87
1,185,751,79 48,897,68 1,342,31 1,235,991,7¢
75,767,021 119,435,815 58,925,102 254,127,9<
831,579,123 - 473,477 832,052,6(
40,837 - - 40,82
11,962,560 14,157,841 3,437,402 29,557,8(C
1,279,806 - - 1,279,8C
920,629,34 133,593,65 62,835,98 1,117,058,9¢
265,122,44 (84,695,97 (61,493,66
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the availability of suffia funds to meet deposit withdrawals and other rioa
commitments associated with financial instrumestthay actually fall due.

The Assets Liability Management Committee (furthALMC”) controls these types of risks by means of miatu
analysis, determining the Group’s strategy for thet fieancial period. Current liquidity is managed the Treasury
Department, which deals in the money markets forecudiquidity support and cash flow optimization.

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group perfsraaily monitoring of future expected cash flowsatients’ and
banking operations, which is a part of assetslitas management process. The Management Boasdiséts on the
minimum proportion of maturing funds available teehdeposit withdrawals and on the minimum leveirterbank
and other borrowing facilities that should be iaqa to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels ofatel.

The analysis of interest rate and liquidity risk calamce sheet transactions as of 31 December 20D2@0V is
presented in the following tables:

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and balances with the
Central Bank of the Republic
of Uzbekistan

Due from banks

Loans under reverse
repurchase agreements

Investments held to maturity

Loans to customers

Total interest bearing
financial assets

Cash and balances with the
Central Bank of the Republic
of Uzbekistan

Due from banks

Investments available for sale

Investment in associates

Other financial assets

Total financial asset:

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Due to banks
Customer accounts
Debt securities issued
Other borrowed funds

Total interest bearing
financial liabilities

Customer accounts
Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Liquidity gap

Interest sensitivity gap

Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap

Up to 1 month to 3 month 1 year to Over Matity 31 December
1 month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years wefthed 2008
Total
124,720,000 - - - - - 124,720,0C
148,016,404 24,636 41,245,791 5,001,6 10,000 - 215,294,5C
- 536,125 1,564,434 - - - 2,100,55
- - 5,366,795 9,346,939 762,327 - 17,478,0€
29,385,371 214,257,737 162,305,011 242,205 158,281,001 - 806,434,4¢
302,121,775 35808,498 210,482,031 256,989, 161,055,328 - 1,166,027,61
204,460,371 - - 204,460,37
110,000 - - 110,0C
4,320,3 - - - - - 4,321,31
- - 12,419,919 12,419,91
15,190,819 - - - - - 15,190,81
526,204,27 235,808,49 210,482,03 256,559,98 161,055,32 12,419,91 1,402,530,02
171,758,302 18,683 42,968,802 67,739,183 11,678,357 308,830,2¢
291,477,749 86,079,311 145,134,366 9,036 3,401,799 - 528,872,2€
- - 11,581 - - 11,58
1,038,407 181,149 1,144,222 26,250,204 - - 28,613,9€
464,274,458 100,946,103 189,258,971 6,788,423 15,080,156 - 866,328,11
135,275,958 3,332,424 128,897,406 - - 417,505,7¢
2,114,164 - - - 2,114,1€
601,664,58 254,278,52 318,156,37 96,768,42 15,080,15 1,285,948,0€
(75,460,305) (1840729) (107,674,346) 159,791,561 145,975,172
(162,152,683) 134,862,395 21,223,060 9,791,561 145,975,172
(162,152,683) (290,288) (6,067,228) 153,728,3 299,699,505

Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap as
percentage of total
financial assets

-12%

-2%

0%

11%

21%

Negative liquidity gap in a 1 year period after theparting date is caused by demand deposits of cestom
Management's assessment of the stability of itsornst accounts funding base based on past perfoemand
months following the balance sheet date throughhw reporting date. Moreover, the customer accobhatse
significant concentration within 2 customers, tlargnt entity and a related party, which is under commontrol

with the parent entity.

49



As discussed in Note 29, subsequent events, asudt i&f the share capital increase, the Bank reckiyzS
69,600,000 thousand. Those funds were used tdistathe Bank's position and provided tangible evide of the
Government’s support for the Bank reflecting itportance to the economy and financial system.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and balances with the
Central Bank of the
Republic of Uzbekistan
Due from banks
Loans under reverse
repurchase agreements
Investments held to maturity
Loans to custome
Total interest bearing financial
assets

Cash and balances with the
Central Bank of the Republic
of Uzbekistan

Due from banks

Investments held to maturity

Investments available for sale

Investment in associates

Other financial assets

Total financial asset:

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Due to banks

Customer accounts

Debt securities issued

Other borrowed funds
Total interest bearing financial
liabilities

Customer accounts

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities
Liquidity gap

Interest sensitivity gap

Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap

Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap as
percentage of total
financial assets

Up to 1 month to 3 month lyearto 5 Over Bturity 31 December
1 month 3 months to 1 year years 5 years uefined 2007
Total
306,950,000 - - - - - 306,950,0C
77,342,593 ,723,273 35,672,892 6,111 - - 135,514,8€
- 503,750 - - 503,75
- - 1,280,150 8,043,684 ,70D,000 11,023,823
30,742,50 39,667,11 226,024,08 257,773,24 75,932,79 630,139,723
415,035,095 55,389,384 263,480,881 272,594,035 77,632,796 1,084,132,1¢
117,134,938 - - 117,134,923
378,892 - - 378,8¢
230,53 - - 230,52
2,988,3 - - - - - 2,928,3€
- - - 11,388,000 11,388,0C
19,798,878 - - - 19,798,87
555,506,69 55,389,38 263,480,88 272,594,03 77,632,79 11,388,00 1,235,991,7¢
85,162,340 799,550 26,444,982 85,829,0 46,844,019 - 254,127,923
671,345,025 24,192,000 15,984,300 - - 711,521,32
40,324 513 - - - 40,83
1,252,005 566,216 - 27,739,582 29,557,8C
757,799,694 34,5389 42,429,282 113,618,629 46,844,019 - 995,247,9C
69,199,057 16,098,305 16,090,820 65,601 3,681,492 120,531,27
1,279,806 - - - - - 1,279,8C
828,278,55 50,654,58 58,520,10 129,080,23 46,844,01 3,681,49 1,117,058,98
(272,771,861) 734,800 204,960,779 143,513,805 30,788,777
(342,764,599) 20,833,105 221,051,599 58,975,406 30,788,777
(342,764,599) (39231,494) (100,879,895) 58,693, 88,884,288
-28% -26% -8% 5% 7%

A further analysis of the liquidity and interest raitks is presented in the following tables in ademce with IFRS
7. The amounts disclosed in these tables do noegpond to the amounts recorded on the balance akeihe
presentation below includes a maturity analysis iioarfcial liabilities that indicates the total remag contractual
payments (including interest payments), which arer@ctgnized in the balance sheet under the effeatierest rate

method.

Weighted
average

interest rate

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Due to bank

Customer accour

Debt securities issu

Other borrowed func
Total interest bearing
financial liabilities

Customer accour
Other financial liabilitie

Total financial liabilities

5.54%
2.34%
26%
0.18%

Upto 1 month to 3 month 1 yearto Over Maturity 31 Decembe
1 month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years wefthed 2008
Total

172,480,72. 14,889,02:  45,349,08(  86,501,41( 19,140,98( 338,361,21
920,271,221 43,003,75:  96,815,28( 3,103,90¢ 1,063,194,16
14,58 14,58
81,75 181,23( 1,146,25: 27,448,10¢ 28,857,34
1,092,833,701 58,074,006 143,325,194 117,053,422 19,140,980 - 1,430,427,30
135,275,95! 153,332,42: 128,897,40t 417,505,78
2,114,16. 2,114,16
1,230,223,82: 211,406,43( 272,222,60( 117,053,42: 19,140,98( 1,850,047,25
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Weighted Up to 1 month to 3 month lyearto5 Over Maturity 31 Decembe
average 1 month 3 months to 1 year years 5years undefined 2007
interest rate Total
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to bank 4.98% 85,452,35 9,919,56¢ 27,762,35¢ 107,269,69: 62,323,26¢ 292,727,24
Customer accour 3.36% 742,619,00 40,628,97. 33,153,57: 18,060,90¢ 3,691,80 838,154,26
Debt securities issu 22% 41,06 54: 41,60
Other borrowed func 4.23% 572,20 33,609,34! 34,181,55
Total interest bearing
financial liabilities 828,112,422 51,12188 60,915,932 158,939,945 62,323,268 3,691,807 1,165,104,66
Customer accour 69,199,05 16,098,30! 16,090,82( 15,461,60: 3,681,49:. 120,531,27
Other financial liabilitie 1,279,80! 1,279,80
Total financial liabilities 898,591,28 67,219,59: 77,006,75. 174,401,54¢ 62,323,26¢ 7,373,29¢ 1,286,915,74

Market risk

Market risk covers interest rate risk, currency @askl other pricing risks to which the Group is esgeh There have
been no changes as to the way the Group measues tisthe risk it is exposed.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risks asiesin the Group borrow funds at both fixed arahfing rates. The
risk is managed by the Group maintaining an appat@rix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

The ALMC also manages interest rate and markes tiskmatching the Group’s interest rate positionictviprovides
the Group with a positive interest margin. The ALM@nducts monitoring of the Group’s current finahci
performance, estimates the Group’s sensitivity tanges in interest rates and its influence on theufss

profitability.

The majority of the Group’s loan contracts and ofirencial assets and liabilities that bear inteags either variable
or contain clauses enabling the interest rate toHamged at the option of the lender. The Groupitomits interest
rate margin and consequently does not considef #gplosed to significant interest rate risk or @angential cash
flow risk.

Interest rate risk sensitivity

The Group manages fair value interest rate ris@utin periodic estimation of potential losses thatld arise from
adverse changes in market conditions. The Treasapafment conducts monitoring of the Group’s curferancial

performance, estimates the Group’s sensitivity @anges in fair value interest rates and its infleeao the Group’s
profitability.

The following table presents a sensitivity analysisirderest rate risk, which has been determinededasn
“reasonably possible changes in the risk variabldie level of these changes is determined by manageanel is
contained within the risk reports provided to keynagement personnel.

As at 31 December 2008
Interest rate Interest rate

As at 31 December 2007
Interest rate Interest rate

Impact on profit before tax

+1% -1% +1% -1%
Assets
Loans to customers 636,332 (636,332) 1,181,164 ,1611,164)
Liabilities
Due to banks (1,056,109) 1,068 (1,146,790) 1,146,793
Other borrowed funds - - (34,374) 34,37
Net impact on profit before tax (419,777) 419,777 -

As at 31 December 2008
Interest rate Interest rate

As at 31 December 2007
Interest rate Interest rate

Impact on shareholder's equity

+1% -1% +1% -1%
Asset
Loans to customers 540,882 (540,882) 980,366 (980,366)
Liabilities
Due to banks (897,693) 97,893 (951,836) 951,83
Other borrowed funds - - (28,530) 28,53
Impact on shareholder's equity (356,811) 356,811 -
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Currency risk

Currency risk is defined as the risk that the valfi@ financial instrument will fluctuate due to clgges in foreign
exchange rates. The Group is exposed to the effédigctuations in the prevailing foreign curreneychange rates
on its financial position and cash flows.

The ALMC controls currency risk by management of tipen currency position on the estimated basis of UZS
devaluation and other macroeconomic indicatorschvigives the Group an opportunity to minimize losesn
significant currency rates fluctuations toward itational currency. The Treasury Department performiy da
monitoring of the Group’s open currency positionhatihe aim to match the requirements of the Ceaak of the

Republic of Uzbekistan.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange niak as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 is presémtthe

tables below:

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and balances with the Cer
Bank of the Republic of Uzbekistan
Due from banks

Loans under rever

repurchase agreements

Loans to customers

Investments available-for-sale
Investments held to maturity
Investment in associates

Other financial assets

Total financial asset:

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Due to banks
Customer accounts
Debt securities issued
Other borrowed funds
Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

OPEN BALANCE SHEET
POSITION

uzs USD EUR Other 31 Decembe
USD 1 =UzZs EUR 1 =UZS currencies 2008
1,393.0( 2,050.3¢ Total
268,381 59,198,481 3,813,826 879,183 329,180,37
118,237,816 73,829 21,396,740 2,247,057 215,404,50
2,100,559 - - - 2,100,55
353,918,256 ,BABO77 90,622,512 13,848,64 806,434,49
796,3 3,580,914 - - 4,321,31
17,478,061 - - - 17,478,06
12,419,919 - - - 12,419,91
15,190,819 - - - 15,190,81
785,374,70 484,350,36 115,833,07 16,971,88 1,402,530,03
32,701,540 181,396, 79,420,540 14,717,811  308,830,28
792,079,104 3861538 8,648,212 1,295,1 946,378,04
11,581 - - - 11,58
10,756,893 2,227,117 15,629,972 - 28,613,98
2,114,164 - - - 2,114,16
837,663,28 328,613,05 103,698,72 15,973,00 1,285,948,06
(52,288,575) 155,737,310 12,134,354 998,883
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uzs USD EUR Other 31 Decembe
USD 1 =UZS EUR 1 =UZS currencies 2007
1,290.0( 1,856.8: Total

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with the Cer

Bank of the Republic of Uzbekistan 3%3,528 17,846,405 5,989,938 1,667,067 424,084,93
Due from banks 78,158,683 38,223 3,219,706 949,1 135,893,76
Loans unde

reverse repurchase agreements 7503, - - - 503,75
Loans to customers 171,424,510 BB 262 125,734,966 - 630,139,73
Investments available-for-sale 2,878,17 56,186 - - 2,928,36
Investments held to maturity 11,254,365 - - - 11,254,36
Investment in associates 11,388,000 - - - 11,388,00
Other financial assets 19,798,878 - - - 19,798,87
Total financial asset: 693,981,89 404,421,07 134,944,61 2,644,21 1,235,991,79
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks 19,046,890 114888, 103,753,781 16,346,454  254,127,93
Customer accounts 715,728,046 4031308 1,227,320 628, 832,052,60
Debt securities issued 40,837 - - - 40,83
Other borrowed funds 11,962,560 3,437,402 14,157,841 - 29,557,80
Other financial liabilities 1,279,806 - - - 1,279,80
Total financial liabilities 748,058,13 232,821,52 119,138,94 17,040,38 1,117,058,98
OPEN BALANCE SHEET

POSITION (54,076,249) 171,599,553 15,805,668 (14,396,164)

Currency risk sensitivity

The following table details the Group’s Sensitiitlya 10% increase and decrease in the USD aghm$&iZS. 10%
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foremmrency risk internally to key management personma a
represents management’s assessment of the possibige in foreign currency exchange rates. The tgstysi
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currencayod@inated monetary items and adjusts their traosiat the
end of the period for a 10% change in foreign qwyerates. The sensitivity analysis includes exteloets as well
as loans to foreign operations within the Group rehtbe denomination of the loan is in a currencyeothan the
currency of the lender or the borrower.

As at 31 December 2008 As at 31 December 2007

UZS/USC UZS/USC UZS/USC UZS/USC
10% -10% 10% -10%
Impact on profit or loss 15,573,731 (15,573,731) 17,159,955 (17,159,955)

As at 31 December 2008 As at 31 December 2007

UZS/EUR UZS/EUR UZS/EUR UZS/EUR
10% -10% 10% -10%
Impact on profit or loss 1,213,435 (1,213,435) 1,580,567 (1,580,567)

Limitations of sensitivity analysis

The above tables demonstrate the effect of a changeéey assumption while other assumptions remaghanged.
In reality, there is a correlation between the aggions and other factors. It should also be notest these
sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or smattgracts should not be interpolated or extrapoléteoh these results.

The sensitivity analyses do not take into considenathat the Group’s assets and liabilities arevabtimanaged.
Additionally, the financial position of the Group yngary at the time that any actual market movementirscd-or
example, the Group’s financial risk managementtesia aims to manage the exposure to market fluctositiAs
investment markets move past various trigger levenagement actions could include selling investmyechanging
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investment portfolio allocation and taking otheotective action. Consequently, the actual impaa ohange in the
assumptions may not have any impact on the lialsijitiehereas assets are held at market value orathede sheet.
In these circumstances, the different measuremased for liabilities and assets may lead to vdiatiin
shareholder’s equity.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analysedude the use of hypothetical market movementstoahstrate
potential risk that only represent the Group’s viEwossible near-term market changes that cannptdmicted with
any certainty; and the assumption that all inter@gtsrmove in an identical fashion.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a finahdfstrument will fluctuate as a result of changeanarket prices
whether those changes are caused by factors spaxifite individual security or its issuer or factaf$ecting all
securities traded in the market. The Group is esgde price risks of its products which are subtecgeneral and
specific market fluctuations.

The Group manages price risk through periodic egton of potential losses that could arise fromeade changes in
market conditions and establishing and maintainaqgpropriate stop-loss limits and margin and cailkdte
requirements. With respect to undrawn loan commitsi¢he Group is potentially exposed to a loss oasmount

equal to the total amount of such commitments. Hanethe likely amount of a loss is less than tlatce most

commitments are contingent upon certain conditgetout in the loan agreements.

Other price risk
The Group is not exposed to equity price risks agisrom equity investments. Equity investments arkl lier

strategic than trading purposes. The Group doeagtimely trade these investments due to the fadtrttarket for the
investments is not active in Uzbekistan.
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